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Laying of Foundation Stone of 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Project by
Hon'ble Prime Minister, Shri Narendra Modi on 18" December, 2023
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VISION & MISSION OF THE COMPANY

Statement

»  Tobe an exemplary Renewable Energy Entity

transforming lives for sustainable future.

To provide best infrastructure for producing

sustainable, affordable and clean energy for
generations.

To contribute in producing affordable clean
energy for billions.

To provide exemplary eco system for
transforming power generation system in
India towards a clean energy model.

To provide an eco-system for generating
renewable and sustainable energy in a cost-
effective manner for generations.

To transform the power generation systemin
India towards renewable and sustainable
energy model.

TUSCO LIMITED
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REGISTERED OFFICE

TUSCO Limited, 4th Floor,

UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow-226010 (U.P.),
Ph.: 0522- 3515962

v

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

Shri Manoj Sardana
Contact No.: 9650493650
Email:msardana@thdc.co.in

v

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)

Shri Vinay Prakash Mathur
Contact No.: 9412076924
Email: vinaymathur@thdc.co.in

v

COMPANY SECRETARY (CS)

Shri Himanshu Bajpai
Contact No.: 7985143022
Email: himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in

v

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Joy Mukherjee & Associates

104 - Ravindra Garden, Sec — E Aliganj,
Lucknow-226024

Contact No. 9415020260

Email : joymukherjee.ca@gmail.com

v

BANKERS

Punjab National Bank
Mandi Parishad,Vibhuti Khand,
Gomti Nagar, Lucknow 226010

v
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KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

3 (In lakhs)
2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
A. Revenue
Revenue from Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Income 52.39 52.66 40.83 10.26 7.86
Deferred Revenue on account of
Irrigation Component 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 | Less: Depreciation on Irrigation
Component 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 | TOTAL REVENUE 52.39 52.66 40.83 10.26 7.86
B. Expenses
Employees Benefits Expense 106.94 123.62 76.26 154.07 0.00
Generation, Administration &
Other Expenses 2.95 2.95 2.36 2.36 42.37
Provisions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Extraordinary items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10| TOTAL EXPENDITURE 109.89 126.57 78.62 156.43 42.37
11| GROSS MARGIN (PBDIT) (5-10) (57.50) (73.91) (37.79) (146.17) (34.51)
12| Depreciation & Amortisation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 | GROSS PROFIT(PBIT) (11-12) (57.50) (73.91) (37.79) (146.17) (34.51)
14| Finance Cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15 | Profit before Tax and net movement in
regulatory deferral account balance (13-14) (57.50) (73.91) (37.79) (146.17) (34.51)
16 | Income Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17| Deferred Tax Asset (10.17) (15.56) (13.12) (43.33) (8.52)
18| Profit for the period before net
movement in regulatory deferral account
balances (15-16-17) (47.33) (58.35) (24.67) (102.84) (25.99)
19| Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral
Account Balance Income/ (Expense) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20| Profit for the period from continuing
operations (18+19) (47.33) (58.35) (24.67) (102.84) (25.99)
21| Other Comprehensive income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
22 | Income Tax on OCI- Deferred Tax
Assets/ Liability 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
23| Total Comprehensive Income
(20+21+22) (47.33) (58.35) (24.67) (102.84) (25.99)
C. Assets
24| Tangible and Intangible Assets (Net Block) 1,946.97 107.05 73.24 47.53 21.30
25| Capital Work in Progress 13,618.35 8,605.35 4,687.60 2,010.65 640.60
26 | Right of Use Assets 11,370.16 10,656.84 8,639.70 4,980.33 32.76
27| Long term Loans and Advances 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28| Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 90.71 80.53 64.97 51.85 8.52
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KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

3 (In lakhs)
2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21

29| Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 20.26 8.29 4.08 0.00 0.00
30| Other Non- Current Assets 6,599.88 3,114.82 327.78 1.62 0.00
31| Current Assets 8,727.03 1,691.12 2,210.77 261.95 724.29
32| Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
33| Investment in subsidiary co. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
34| Total Assets 42,373.36 24,264.00 16,008.14 7,353.93 | 1,427.47

Liabilities
35| Equity Share Capital 4,500.00 4,000.00 3,500.00 2,000.00 | 1,000.00
36| Reserves and Surplus 73.81 (211.86) 216.50 (128.83) (25.99)
37| Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
38| Total Other Equity 73.81 (211.86) 216.50 (128.83) (25.99)
39| Long Term Borrowings 6,454.64 2,941.38 0.00 0.00 0.00
40| Non-Current Lease Liabilities 12,034.00 10,794.8 1 8,771.35 4,778.20 27.68
41| Other Long-Term Liabilities and Provisions 15,604.06 4,830.33 2,450.00 50.00 0.00
42 | Short term Borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
43| Current Maturity of Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
44 | Current Maturity of Lease Liabilities 1,005.47 1,177.48 609.68 373.66 6.85
45| Other Current Liabilities 2,701.38 731.86 460.61 280.90 418.93
46 | Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
47| Total Liabilities 42,373.36 24,264.00 16,008.14 7,353.93 | 1,427.47
48| Net Worth (35+38) 4,573.81 3,788.14 3,716.5 1,871.17 974.01
49| Capital Employed (48+43+42+39-28) 10,937.74 6,648.99 3,651.53 1,819.32 965.49
50| Dividend 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
51| Value added (11) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
52| Number of Employees 48 50 22 19 12
53| Number of share (in Lakhs) (Par value of

3 1000/- share) 4.5 4.00 3.5 2.00 1.00
E | Ratios

Earnings per share including net movement

in regulatory deferral account balance

(Par value of Rs. 1000/- share) (in X) (11.81) (15.44) (8.66) (89.91) (25.99)

Current Ratio [31 / (42+43+44+45)] 2.35 0.89 2.07 0.40 1.70

Debt to Equity ((39+42+43) / 48) 1.41 0.78 0.00 0.00 0.00

Return on capital Employed (PBIT/

Capital Employed)[(13+9) / 49] (0.52) % (1.11) % (1.03) % (8.03)% | (3.57)%

Return on Average Net Worth (1.13) % (1.56) % (0.88) % (7.23)% | (2.67)%

Total Comprehensive Income to Revenue

from Operations (23 /1) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Book value per share (in X) (48/53) 1,016.40 947.03 1,061.85 935.59 974.01

Value added per employee (Xin Cr.) (51/52) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dividend Per Share (in X) (Share of *1000/- each) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
F | Operating Performance

Generation (M.U.) NA NA N.A. N.A. N.A.

TUSCO LIMITED
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Shri Narendra Modi

Prime Minister

sdilahad, Telangans
Mumdav, 4 Mareh 2024

Laying of Foundation Stone of 600 MW Lalitpur Solar Project by
Hon'ble Prime Minister, Sh. Narendra Modi on 4th March 2024
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CHAIRMAN'’S SPEECH

Dear Members,

| am delighted to present our Fifth Annual Report that
encapsulates a comprehensive overview of TUSCO Limited in
FY 2024-25 and the planned path ahead. During the
reporting period, we experienced both growth and
challenges across different segments. Despite various
challenges, | am pleased to share that our Company
delivered sturdy financial performance, staying committed
to shared value creation. | would like to present Report of the
Auditor’s and Directors’ Report for the year 2024-25 along
with Annual Audited Accounts. | would now seek your
permission to take them as read.

The Government of India (Gol) has set an ambitious target of
installing 500 GW of cumulative Renewable Power capacity
by the year 2030 to move towards greener economy. With
progressively declining costs, improved efficiency and
reliability, renewable energy is now an attractive option for
meeting the energy needs across different sectors of the
economy.

Ministry of New & Renewable Energy (MNRE) has launched
various schemes for development of Ultra Mega Solar Power
Projects to achieve the above ambitious target of renewable
power capacity addition. There are 8 modes under which
Ultra Mega Renewable Energy Power Parks (UMREPPs)
schemes are implemented. Ultra Mega Renewable Energy
Power Parks (UMREPPs) of TUSCO Ltd. are being developed
through SPV mode by CPSUs/ State PSUs/ Govt. JVs/ their
subsidiaries under Mode —8 of MNRE Guidelines.

MNRE has allotted 2000 MW Ultra Mega Solar Power Parks to
THDCIL for development in the State of Uttar Pradesh.

Subsequently, it was decided to get these solar parks
implemented through a JV between THDCIL and Uttar
Pradesh New and Renewable Energy Development Agency
(UPNEDA). Thus, a JV company, namely TUSCO Limited was
incorporated on 12.09.2020 with 74% and 26% equity shares
of THDCILand UPNEDA respectively.

The company has remained resilient in the face of multiple
challenges and emerged as a sustainable player in renewable
energy, creating a template for the adoption of affordable
clean energy in India. TUSCO Limited is helping India move
closertoits Sustainable Development Goals.

Projects:

In-principle approval has been accorded by MNRE in
13.10.2020 for setting up of two Solar Parks of 600 MW each
in the districts of Lalitpur and Jhansi. MNRE has also accorded
in-principle approval for setting up of 800 MW capacity
UMREPP in Distt. Chitrakoot on 18.08.2021. Thus, in-
principle approval for setting up UMREPPs of entire 2000 MW
capacity in UP has been accorded by MNRE under Mode-8 of
MNRE scheme issued on 15.06.2020. The works at all the
allotted solar power parks are under progress.

Future Outlook:

To meet the increasing electricity demand in the country,
commissioning of allotted UMREPPs on faster track is the
need of the hour. Taking all the necessary actions, | am sure
that the dedicated and experienced employee work force of
company would put in their best efforts to achieve the above
Task.

Exploring new business avenues is also required for the
sustainable growth of the company. Accordingly, TUSCO
Limited was entrusted for the development of DPRs and PFRs
of Six Floating Solar Projects i.e. Matatila dam (Lalitpur),
Jamini dam (Lalitpur), Dhukwa dam (Jhansi), Arjun sagar dam
(Mahabad), Adwa dam (Mirzapur) and Ramganga dam
(Kalagarh) by UP Irrigation Department. Our team completed
the feasibility study of all these six floating solar projects.
Based on the outcome of feasibility study 3 projects viz.
Matatila dam (400 MW), Jamini dam (37 MW) and Arjun
Sagar dam (27MW) were found feasible. Further, Detailed
project reports of these feasible solar projects have been
prepared and submitted to GoUP for consideration, approval
and allotment for implementation of these projects by
THDCIL. Further, MoU is signed between M/s THDCIL and
GoUP on 17.01.2024 for establishing an Off stream closed
loop PSP with an installed capacity of 1200 MW in
Bashuhari/Vadela village, Tehsil Robertsganj, Sonbhadra
District, U.P. GoUP has accorded in principle approval to
THDCIL on 25.07.2024 to develop the above-mentioned PSP.
Later, implementation of the project was handed over to
TUSCO Ltd.

®

TUSCO LIMITED
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Acknowledgment:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of TUSCO limited, | would
like to convey my gratitude to all our stakeholders, business
partners, customers, MNRE, SECI, GoUP, DMs of Jhansi,
Lalitpur and Chitrakoot and all other district level officers of
Govt. of U.P. for their support in our endeavors and also to
the Irrigation Department for Floating Power Projects in U.P.
I would also like to extend my thanks to the farmers, who
showed their commitment in signing of lease deeds and the
bankers for making all payments to farmers timely.

| also take this opportunity to whole heartedly thank the
entire work force of TUSCO Ltd for putting their efforts to
establish the company and expediting the singing of lease
deeds with farmers at Jhansi, Lalitpur and Chitrakoot.
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| strongly believe that together we will continue to strive, to
ensure supply of clean and green energy for our Country’s
unabated development.

Atthe end, | thank my esteemed colleagues on the Board and
seek their encouragement and valuable guidance in future.
| also thank you for your continued trust, confidence and

support.
With best wishes,
Sd/-
(Rajeev Kumar Vishnoi)
Chairman

DIN: 08534217
Place : Lucknow
Date : 23.09.2025

'
I

Meeting of Chairman, TUSCO Limited with Chief Secretary , Government of Uttar Pradesh.

TUSCO LIMITED
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DIRECTOR’S BRIEF PROFILE

SHRIRAJEEV KUMAR VISHNOI

Shri Rajeev Kumar Vishnoi assumed charge as Chairman of TUSCO Limited on 06.08.2021. He
is presently CMD of THDC India Limited. Prior to this, he was Director (Technical) of THDC India
Ltd. from 01.09.2019. Shri Vishnoi is an Hons. Graduate in Civil Engineering from BITS, Pilani
and has more than 38 years of vast and rich experience in Design, Engineering and
construction of Hydro Projects. He has also attained the qualification of MBA and has
undergone Professional up gradation Programme in Design and Construction of Hydraulic
Structures and Hydropower Constructions from State University of Moscow, Russia. He has
also attended Advance Management Programme in Leading Strategic Change from ASCI,
Hyderabad in association with SDA Bacconi School of Management, Italy.

SHRISIPAN KUMAR GARG

Shri Sipan Kumar Garg assumed the charge as Director (Finance) of THDC India Limited on
August 17, 2024 and has been appointed as Nominee Director of THDCIL on TUSCO Board
w.e.f. 09.09.2025. He has been designated as Chief Financial Officer of THDCIL w.e.f.
27.09.2024. A distinguished finance professional, Shri Garg holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Hons) and is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (CA), the Institute of
Cost Accountants of India (CMA), and the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (CS).
Additionally, he has done LL.B. and was arank holder in the Company Secretary examination.

He has 24 years of extensive experience in Finance, Accounts, Taxation, and Commercial
aspects within the power sector. His prior experience includes serving as the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) at Aravali Power Company Private Limited and Patratu Vidyut Utpadan Nigam
Limited, both Group Companies of NTPC Limited. He has also contributed to NTPC Limited in
various capacities, including strategic roles in the Corporate Accounts Group and the Koldam
Hydro Power Project.

During his tenure at NTPC, Shri Garg ascended the professional ladder through his strong
sense of responsibility, ethics, and unwavering dedication to the Company. Recognized as an
outstanding finance professional, he excelled in every role he undertook at NTPC. Under his
leadership in Finance, Aravali Power Company Private Limited receive its highest credit ratings
and realized significant savings of interest on long-term loans. He has also been an active
member of several committees of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, including
the ‘Committee on Public Finance and Government Accounting,’” the ‘Accounting Standards
Study Group,” and the ‘Membersin Industry Group (PSU).

SHRISANDEEP SINGHAL

ShriSandeep Singhal is currently holding the post of Executive Director (Technical)at THDCILand
has been appointed as Nominee Director of THDCIL on TUSCO Board w.e.f. 01.03.2024. Shri
Singhal has completed his Bachelors and Masters in Civil Engineering from University of
Roorkee. He joined THDCIL in 1990 as Engineer Trainee and worked for about 24 years in Design
& Engg. Deptt. Thereafter, he worked in Corporate Contracts department and functioned as HoD
of contracts department. He has also served as Incharge of NCR unit of THDCIL. Recently, he has
taken over as ED (Tech.) and is holding the charge of Design & Engg. deptt., Operation
Maintenance & Safety deptt., R&D deptt., Geology & Geotechnical deptt. and Cost Engg. deptt.
at THDCIL.

{2 TUSCO LIMITED
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SHRIINDERJIT SINGH

Shri Inderjit Singh, an IAS officer of the 2016 batch, hails from Doaba, Punjab, and holds an
M.Sc. in Physics. He began his government service in April 2017 with foundation training at
the Lal Bahadur Shastri National Academy of Administration (LBSNAA), Mussoorie. Over the
years, he has served in various key administrative roles, including Assistant Magistrate in
Bijnor, Joint Magistrate in Etawah, Chief Development Officer in Gorakhpur, and Municipal
Commissioner of Lucknow. As of April 2025, Shri Singh holds the position of Special
Secretary in the Energy Department, Government of Uttar Pradesh. In addition, he serves as
the Director of UPNEDA and the Managing Director of UP Renewable and EV Infrastructure
Ltd. In his capacity as Director (UPNEDA), he is also appointed as the Nominee Director
(UPNEDA) on the Board of TUSCO Limited on 24.04.2025.

SHRIBHUPENDER GUPTA

ShriBhupender Gupta has joined THDC India Limited as Director (Technical) on 09th June, 2023 and has been
appointed as Nominee Director of THDCIL on TUSCO Board w.e.f. 09.04.2024. However, as Shri Gupta has
been selected as CMD of NHPC Limited therefore he ceased to be Nominee Director of THDCIL on the board
of TUSCO Limited w.e.f. 04.09.2025. He has also been entrusted additional charge of CMD, SJVN Limited.
Before joining THDCIL, he was holding the position of Director (Technical) at Punatsangchhu Hydroelectric
Project Authority in Bhutan. Prior to this, he worked as Additional Chief Executive Officer of two
subsidiaries of REC, i.e., REC Transmission Projects Co. Ltd and REC Power Distribution Co. Ltd as
Operational Head. During his tenure at REC, he was responsible for Execution, Project Management,
Contract Management, and Consultancy of Power Projects.

Shri Gupta has a rich and vast working experience of around 34 years,out of which, foraround 31
years he has worked in the Power Sector and was responsible for Planning/Design/
Execution/Contract /Project Management and O&M of large Hydro Projects as well as
Transmission/Distribution Projects.

Shri Gupta is a Bachelor of Engineering (Elect.) with an MBA in Operation Management. Before
Joining REC Ltd. in 2007, he worked with Satluj Jal Vidyut Nigam Ltd. (SJVNL) for 12 years in
various positions and was responsible for the Planning, Erection, and Commissioning of Electro-
mechanical Equipment of 1500 MW Nathpa Jhakri Hydro Power Plant, the biggest Hydroelectric
project under operation so farin India. He also worked in Bhutan earlier on deputation with 1020
MW Tala Hydroelectric Power Project for around 3 years.

SHRIANUPAM SHUKLA

Shri Anupam Shukla has been nominated as Nominee Director from Uttar Pradesh New and
Renewable Energy Development Agency on 12.07.2022 on the Board of TUSCO Limited.
However, Shri Shukla cease to be Nominee Director, UPNEDA on the Board of TUSCO Limited
w.e.f. 24.04.2025. He is an |AS officer of 2016 Batch. Shri Shukla has completed his M.Sc. from
Indira Gandhi National Forest University, Dehradun. He has served as Chief Development
Officer, Jaunpur from January, 2020.

Presently, Shri Shukla is posted as Special Secretary, Energy & Additional Sources of Energy,
GoUP andisalso Director (UPNEDA).

TUSCO LIMITED
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TUSCO LIMITED

B W S (A Joint Venture of THDC India Ltd & UP NEDA)
o (CIN : U40106UP2020GO0I1134504)

Regd. Office: 4th Floor, UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti Khand, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow, (U.P.) 226010
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NOTICE OF 5™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 5*" Annual General Meeting of the Members of TUSCO Limited is scheduled on 23" September,
2025 at4:30 PM. through Video Conferencing using Microsoft Teams to transact the following Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toconsiderand adoptthe Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025, the report
of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ Report thereon and, in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 together
with all schedules & annexures forming part of the Annual Accounts and accounting policies of the Company, Cash
Flow Statement, including the Report of Statutory Auditor’s and Comments’ of Comptroller & Auditor General of
India under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and the Directors’ Report laid before the meeting, be and
are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-26, and in this regard, consider and if thought
fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to fix an appropriate
remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company, appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for
the Financial Year 2025-26.”

3. Toappoint ShriSandeep Singhal (DIN: 10581078), Nominee Director —THDCIL, who retires by rotation as a Director.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act,2013, Shri Sandeep Singhal (DIN: 10581078), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is
hereby appointed as Director of the Company.”
SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. Tolncrease the Authorised Share Capital of TUSCO Limited from Rs.50 Crore to Rs.100 Crore.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and the Rules framed
thereunder, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for increase in the Authorised
Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crore) divided into 5,00,000 (Five
Lakh) Equity shares of Rs. 1000 each to Rs. 100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore) divided into 10,00,000
(Ten Lakh) Equity shares of Rs. 1000 each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the
Company as per the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded, for alteration of Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company by substituting in its
place, the following:- “V. The Authorized share capital of the company is 100,00,00,000 rupees, divided into
10,00,000 equity shares of 1000 rupees each.”.

@ TUSCO LIMITED
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid
resolution, Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things whatsoever, including seeking all necessary approvals to
give effect to this Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CEO or CFO be and is hereby authorized to pay
applicable fees to MCA/RoC for giving effect to this resolution.”

5. To consider and approve the Related Party Transaction to be executed between NTPC Green Energy Limited (NGEL) or its
wholly owned subsidiary as Solar Project Developer (SPD) under EPC mode and TUSCO Limited for implementation of 600
MW Lalitpur & 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Park.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution:

To:

¢ All Shareholders of TUSCO Limited
e All Directors of TUSCO Limited

e Statutory Auditors —

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules framed thereunder (including any statutory
amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, consent of
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to execute the Related
party transaction between TUSCO Limited (Subsidiary of THDCIL) and NTPC Green
Energy Limited (NGEL) or its wholly owned subsidiary as Solar Project Developer
(SPD) under EPC mode for implementation of 600 MW Lalitpur Solar Power Park &
800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Power Park, in line with the MNRE guidelines (Mode-8),
the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried outatanarm’s
length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CEO, TUSCO Limited be and is hereby severally
authorised to execute all such agreements, documents, instruments as deemed
necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts
/arrangements/ transactions, that may arise in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chairman, TUSCO be and is hereby authorized to
approve the minoramendmentsin the agreements/documents to be signed.”

By order of the Board of Directors of
TUSCO LIMITED

Sd/-

(Himanshu Bajpai)
Company Secretary
M-9044796670

M/s. Joy Mukherjee & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Place : Lucknow
Date : 23.09.2025

TUSCO LIMITED



Notes:

1.

The Annual General Meeting has been convened by
giving a shorter notice than required under the
Companies Act 2013. The consent of all the share holders
has been obtained.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has, vide its
General Circular dated September 19, 2024, read
together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021,
December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022
and September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as
“MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”/“Meeting”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM”), without physical presence of the members at
a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars
and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”), the AGM of the Company is being held
through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall
be the registered office of the Company.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company
which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. Since the
AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not
annexed in this Notice.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), setting out material facts
concerning the special business under agenda Item no. 4
anditemno.5 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board
of Directors has considered and decided to include the
special business at the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy
need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC /
OAVM, physical attendance of Shareholders has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Shareholders will not be available for
the AGM and hence the Proxy Form is not annexed to this
Notice.

Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of
Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
Attendance Slip is not annexed to this Notice.

Corporate shareholders are requested to send to the
Company, a duly certified copy of the board resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the
AGM. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to
the Company by email through its registered email
address to himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in.
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8. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to any
matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write
to the Company on or before 23rd September, 2025
through email on himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in. The
same will be replied by the Company suitably.

9. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice
of the AGM is being sent only through electronic mode
to those Shareholders whose email addresses are
registered with the Company.

10. Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act. The Designated Email
Address for the Company is himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in,
Shareholders in case of any query may send an email to
himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in. Further, in case voting is
conducted by way of poll shareholders are requested to send
theirvote onthisemail id.

11. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the
Resolution proposed in the Notice shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of the Meeting.

12. Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 35 of the Companies (Incorporation)
Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies are permitted
to send official documents to their shareholders
electronically.

13. Additional information as required by Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secre-
taries of India, in respect of Director seeking appoint-
ment/ reappointment at the Annual General Meeting is
furnished as Annexure to the Notice and marked as
Annexurell.

Procedure for inspection of documents:

All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available
electronically for inspection without any fee by the members
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of
AGM. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section
170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which the Directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, and the relevant documents referred
to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection
by the members. Member who intends to inspect such
documents are requested to send an email to Company on
email address himanshubajpai@thdc.co.in.

Voting by Members:

Member to convey his vote by show of hands in the AGM as
the total number of members are less than 50. However, if
the pollis demanded in the AGM, members are requested to
send the email of their decision of voting on the designated e
mail ID of the Company.

TUSCO LIMITED
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Annexure-|
BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT
Particulars ShriSandeep Singhal
Age 59years
Date of birth 27.06.1966
Quialification Bachelors and Masters in Civil Engineering
from University of Roorkee
Experience 35+ Years of vast and rich experience in

Design, Engineering and construction of
Hydro Project structures.

Directorships held/ KMP in other Companies/Forums Nil

Memberships/Chairmanships of Committees of other Companies N.A.
(excluding Section 8 Companies, Foreign Companies
and Private Companies)

Number of shares held in the Company 1

Relationship with other Directors No inter-se relation between directors
Number of the Meetings of the Board attended during the year 7 (Seven)

Remuneration Nil

Terms of Appointment Liable to retire by Rotation

TUSCO LIMITED (17)
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TUSCO LIMITED

B W S (A Joint Venture of THDC India Ltd & UP NEDA)
o (CIN : U40106UP2020G0I1134504)

Regd. Office: 4th Floor, UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti Khand, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow, (U.P.) 226010

Tieen £ LMTED
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. & Subject

Item No. 4: To Increase the Authorised Share Capital of TUSCO Limited from ¥50 Crore to 3100 Crore.

TUSCO Limited was incorporated on 12" September, 2020 as a Joint Venture Company of THDC India Limited and Uttar Pradesh
New and Renewable Energy Development Agency. The Equity of the Company is shared between THDCIL and UPNEDA in the
ratio of 74:26. The Company has an authorized share capital of 350 crore. The present Authorized Share Capital of TUSCO Limited
is ¥50.00 crore divided in to 5,00,000 equity shares of 1000 each. As on date, the paid up capital is ¥49.50 crore allotted and
issued between THDC India Limited and UPNEDA in the ratio of 74:26 as per MOU.

Presently, TUSCO Limited has the following Projects with equity shown against each as per table below: -

S.No. Name of the project Capacity Equity as per DPR
Jhansi Solar Park 600 MW %20.00 crore
2 Lalitpur Solar Park 600 MW %20.00 crore
3 Chitrakoot Solar Park 800 MW $16.50 crore
2000 MW

As mentioned above, the Authorized equity Capital of TUSCO Limited is ¥50 Cr. and as per approved DPR’s of 3 solar power parks
the total authorized share capital is ¥56.5 Cr. The DPRs of 03 Floating Solar Power Projects namely Mata Tila Dam & Reservoir,
Lalitpur-400 MW, Jamini Dam & Reservoir, Lalitpur —37 MW and Arjun Sagar, Mahoba — 27 MW, prepared by TUSCO, are under
consideration of GoUP for conveying consent forimplementation of these 03 floating solar projects by THDC.

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed between M/s THDC India Limited (THDCIL) and the Government of Uttar
Pradesh (GoUP) on 17.01.2024 for the establishment of a 1200 MW Off-Stream Closed Loop Pumped Storage Project (PSP) in
Sonbhadra District, Uttar Pradesh. Subsequently, GoUP granted in-principle approval to THDCIL on 25.07.2024 for the
development of the project. Later, THDC on 27.06.2024, the project was handed over to TUSCO Limited for further development
activities. The proposal of administrative approval and cost estimation for the preparation of the Detailed Project Report (DPR)
for the 1200 MW PSP, amounting to 316.98 crore (including GST), are currently under process. Additionally, TUSCO Limited is
expected to receive more projectsin the future, and to accommodate unforeseen expenses, additional equity will be required. In
light of this, it is requested that the authorized share capital of TUSCO Limited be increased from ¥50 crore to 100 crore. To give
effect toincrease in authorized share capital of the company, stamp duty as perapplicable rates shall be payable.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its 21%* Board Meeting held on 19.03.2025 has approved the proposal to increase the
authorized capital, subject to the approval of members.

Inview of the above, shareholders are requested to pass the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

(18] TUSCO LIMITED
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof)
and the Rules framed thereunder, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded forincrease the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from existing ¥50,00,00,000
(Rupees Fifty Crore) divided into 5,00,000 (Five Lakh) Equity shares of %1000 each to
%100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore) divided into 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Equity shares of
%1000 each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company as
perthe Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 13 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded, for alteration of Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company by substituting inits place, the following:- “V. The Authorized share
capital of the company is ¥100,00,00,000, divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of 31000
each.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, Company
Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things whatsoever,
including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CEO or CFO be and is hereby authorized to pay applicable fees to
MCA/RoC for giving effect to this resolution.

The Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives do not have concern or interest, financial or otherwise, in passing of
the said Special Resolution, except to the extent of their shareholdingin the Company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. & Subject

Item No. 5: To consider and approve the Related Party Transaction to be executed between NTPC Green Energy Limited (NGEL)
or its wholly owned subsidiary as Solar Project Developer (SPD) under EPC mode and TUSCO Limited for implementation of
600 MW Lalitpur & 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Park.

NTPC Limited vide its letters dated 9t" October 2024, 18" October 2024, 11t December 2024, and 16th December 2024 desired to
gettheimplementation of the above Solar Projects to be executed with NGEL or its wholly owned subsidiary as the SPD.

Accordingly, the proposal for the implementation of the 600 MW Lalitpur and the 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Projects by NGEL or
its wholly owned subsidiary as SPD on EPC mode was approved by the Board of Directors of TUSCO Limited in their 19t meeting
held on 27" December 2024.

Furthermore, as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, the proposed transaction falls under clause (d) of Section 188(1),
which pertains to the availing or rendering of services. Additionally, the proposed transaction amount exceeds the prescribed
threshold of ten percent or more of the annual turnover of TUSCO Limited.

It is submitted that the proposed transaction for the implementation of the 600 MW Lalitpur and the 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar
Projects is between related parties, namely NGEL or its wholly owned subsidiary and TUSCO Limited (a subsidiary of NTPC
Limited) and falls within the purview of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. The proposed transaction is in line with the
MNRE guidelines and NGEL or its wholly owned subsidiary can act as SPD as per MNRE guidelines (Mode-8). The clarification in
this regard has been obtained from MNRE. Further, as per these guidelines, solar parks should not be taken as profit-making
activities, and a maximum 16% Return on equity is allowed. The transaction is on an arm’s length basis. Furthermore, as the
proposal pertains to a solar power park development, it falls within the ordinary course of business.

TUSCO LIMITED ®
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Brief details of the Related Party Transaction to be executed between NTPC Green Energy Limited or its wholly owned
subsidiary and TUSCO Limited are given below:

Name of the related party and its relationship with the listed| NTPC Green Energy Limited or its wholly owned subsidiary

entity or its subsidiary Relationship subsidiary of the same holding company.
Tenure of the Proposed Transaction 25 Years
Transaction Value or Charges Summary of charges payable by SPD (NGEL/NREL) to SPPD

(TUSCO Ltd) are as perpara2.2 & 2.3 (below).

Nature of Transaction Providing Solar Park (land on right-to-use basis) with
basic civil infrastructure facilities and internal power
infrastructure facilities to SPD to set up solar projects
inside the solar park.

Brief Justifications for why the RPT is in the interest of There are mainly two modes of implementation of solar
TUSCO Limited projects inside these solar parks, i.e., EPC mode and TBCB
mode.

As the Power Procurer is not yet identified for these solar
parks and given strict timelines for the completion of the
project by MNRE, NGEL (the resource CPSU in green
energy) as SPD can leverage its position to timely arrange a
PPA and can successfully commission solar project within
the stipulated timelines.

Solar Park Charges to be recovered from SPD

The financial model and Solar Park charges for both the Lalitpur and Chitrakoot solar parks to be taken from the SPD as
approved by the TUSCO Board are mentioned below:

Brief summary of charges payable by SPD (NGEL/NREL) for the Lalitpur Solar Park

SI.No. | Description of Charges | Amount Time of Payment Total Amount for 600 MW
1.0 One-time Charges Upfront Solar Park Before or at the time 158.19Cr.+ GST
while or before signing | Development Charges, of signing of Contract
of agreements with Local Area Development & Agreements (ISA &
SPPD: charges, Advance Land- LRUA)

lease rent charges in
lieu of Land lease rent up
to FY. 2030-31. - ¥26.365

Lakhs/MW + GST
2.0 | Annual Park Charges %3.72 Lakhs/MW/Year + Payment shall 322.32Cr.+GST
Taxes with 5% annual commence from 01st with 5% annual escalation.
escalation January, 2026.
3.0 Annual Land Lease rent | %0.53 Lakh/MW/Year + From the start of FY. $3.20 Cr. + GST with
from FY. 2031-32 applicable taxes, duties, 2031-32 till the escalation per LRUA,
(Passed on to farmers) cess etc., with escalation duration as per the calculation sheet.
as per Land Right-to-Use provisions of the Land
Agreement. Right to-Use
Agreement.
4.0 Facilitation & other As per guidelines and policies of MNRE/GoUP/Gol, | To the Government of UP/SPPD
charges vide MNRE Mode-8 Guidelines dated 15 June 2020 | UPNEDA or any agency designated
and GoUP order la[;k777/87-vfrom0lzks0fo0/2020 by the Government of UP.
dated 23" June 2020.

D TUSCO LIMITED
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Brief summary of charges payable by SPD (NGEL/NREL) for Chitrakoot Solar Park

Sr.No | Description of Charges | Amount Time of Payment Total Amount for 800 MW
1.0 One-time Charges while | Upfront Solar Park Dev-| Before or at the time| ¥209.08Cr.+GST
or before signing of |elopment Charges, Local | of signing of Contract
agreementswithSPPD: | Area Development cha-| & Agreements (ISA &
rges, Advance Land-lease | LRUA)
rent chargesin lieu of Land
lease rent up to FY. 2030-
31. - INR 26.135 Lakhs/
MW +GST.
2.0 Annual Park Charges 32.95 Lakhs/MW/Year | Payment shall comm-| 22.32Cr.+GST
+Taxes with 5% annual | ence from 01st Jan,| with 5% annual escalation.
escalation 2026.
3.0 Annual Land Lease rent | Rs.0.58 Lakh/MW/Year+ | From the start of FY.| $4.63Cr.+GST with
from FY 2032-33 (Passed | applicable taxes, duties, | 2032-33 till the| escalation per LRUA, calculation
ontofarmers) cess etc. with escalationas | duration as per pro-| sheet.
per Land Right to Use | visions of the Land
Agreement Right-to Use Agre-
ement
4.0 Facilitation & other As per guidelines and policies of MNRE/GoUP/Gol, | To the Government of UP/SP
charges vide MNRE Mode-8 Guidelines dated 15" June 2020 | PD/UP NEDA or any agency
and GoUP order la[;k777/87-vfrom0lzks0fo0/2020 | designated by the Govt of UP
dated 23" June 2020

The above summary of charges payable by the SPD (NGEL/NREL) for Chitrakoot Solar Park and Lalitpur Solar Park on an estimated

basis. The final charges payable by the SPD (NGEL/NREL) will be determined at the time of the execution of the agreement

between both partiesand upon approval by the TUSCO Board.

Inview of the above, shareholders are requested to pass the following resolution as Ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
framed thereunder (including any statutory amendment(s) or reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to execute the Related party
transaction between TUSCO Limited (Subsidiary of THDCIL) and NTPC Green Energy Limited (NGEL) or its
wholly owned subsidiary as Solar Project Developer (SPD) under EPC mode for implementation of 600
MW Lalitpur Solar Power Park & 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Power Park, in line with the MNRE guidelines
(Mode-8), the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out at an arm’s length
basisandinthe ordinary course of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT CEO, TUSCO Limited be and is hereby severally authorised to execute all such
agreements, documents, instruments as deemed necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and
conditions of such contracts / arrangements / transactions, that may arise in this regard.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chairman, TUSCO be and is hereby authorized to approve the minor
amendmentsin the agreements/documents to be signed.”

The Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives do not have concern or interest, financial or otherwise, in passing of

the said Special Resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

TUSCO LIMITED
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the 05*" Annual Report
on the working of your Company along with the Audited
Financial Statements, Statutory Auditors’ Report and
Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, for
the financial year ending on 31 March, 2025.

THE COMPANY

The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, (MNRE),
Government of India, has allocated the state of Uttar
Pradesh to THDCIL for development of Ultra Mega Ren-
ewable Energy Power Parks (UMREPPs). The UMREPPs are
to be developed through a SPV in the form of a JV Company
between THDCIL and UPNEDA, a Government organization of
UP. Accordingly, Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
between THDCIL and Uttar Pradesh New and Renewable
Energy Development Agency (UPNEDA) for formation of a JV
Company was signed on 06.08.2020.

Thereafter, TUSCO Limited, a Joint Venture Company of THDC
India Limited (THDCIL) and UPNEDA with equity participation
of 74% and 26% between THDCIL and UPNEDA respectively,
was incorporated on 12t September, 2020, as a Public
Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013 with
Authorized Capital of ¥50 Cr. The Registered Office of the
company is situated at 4" Floor, UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti
Khand, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow —226010 (UP).

PROJECTS

The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE),
Government of India, has allotted THDCIL 2000 MW of Ultra
Mega Renewable Energy Solar Power Parks (UMREPPs)
through SPV (i.e., TUSCO Ltd) in the state of Uttar Pradesh.
These UMREPPs are being developed under Mode —8 of Ultra
Mega Renewable Energy Power Projects (UMREPPs) scheme
of MNRE. The salient features of the scheme are as follows:

e State government shall provide assistance in identification
and acquisition of land for setting up of UMREPPs and also
to facilitate all required statutory clearances.

e The land for UMREPP to be allotted with a condition that the
development must be completed within two years (with a
provision of extension for one year under extreme conditions)

e State Govt. would be paid facilitation charges of 30.05 / unit
of power being generated from the projects in the
UMREPPs for the entire PPA period only for the quantum of
power to be exported outside the state from UMREPPs.

e Central Financial Assistance (CFA) of 320 lakh/MW or 30%
of the cost of development of UMREPP, whichever is lower,
would be provided to SPPD (TUSCO Limited).

e If the SPPD or any of its individual promoters has a
tradinglicense, then they can act as a trader of power being
producedin the park for which they will be entitled to claim
amargin of30.07 / unit.

The Project activities in Solar Parks involve taking over of land

from Gram Sabha / Govt. and Private Land of Farmers. The

Govt land is being taken on lease of 30 years @ of ¥1/Acre/

year and land from farmers is being taken on 30 years lease

basis at the rate fixed by GoUP. Project land @ 4.5 acre/MW is
being taken on lease basis for all three solar parks.

The other activities in Solar Park involve construction of
Fencing, Gates, Roads inside Park, drainage planning, arra-
ngement of water at different points/locations,administrative
building, Internal lighting on road and Approach Road to park
from nearest highways/Roads. In addition to the above, Solar
Power Park Developer (SPPD) has to develop internal power
evacuation system connecting nearby Grid Sub-station including
development of Pooling Sub- Stations and internal power
transmission lines. These park infrastructures are scheduled to be
completed by March2026in line with MNRE's timelines.

D
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LAYING OF FOUNDATION STONE OF ALL THREE SOLAR
PARKS BY HON’BLE PRIME MINISTER

The foundation stone of 600 MW Jhansi Solar Power Project
was also laid on 19.11.2021 by Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri
Narendra Modi at Jhansi.

Foundation stone of 800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Power
Park Project was laid by Hon’ble Prime Minister Shri
Narendra Modi on 18.12.2023 from Varanasi through video
conferencing.

Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra Modi laid the foun-
dation stone of TUSCO Ltd.'s monumental 600 MW Lalitpur
Solar Power Project on 04.03.2024 through video con-
ferencing from Adilabaad, Telangana.

10 YEARS ADVANCE LEASE RENT PAYMENT OF LEASED LAND

With a view to expedite the progress of taking of land, lease
rent of an initial 10 years in advance is being paid to the
farmers/land owners as a bulk amount against the land
leased by them for 2000 MW Solar projects of TUSCO Ltd. at
Jhansi, Lalitpur and Chitrakootin U.P.

STATUS OF 600 MW JHANSI SOLAR POWER PARK (JSPP)
LAND ACQUISITION FORJHANSI SOLAR PARK:

600 MW UMREPP in Jhansi is being established in Garautha
Tehsil of Jhansi district in U.P. The land targeted for Jhansi
Solar Power Park for acquisition on 30 years lease basis is
2700 acres as per DPR, which is in line with the National
Electricity Plan 2023 issued by CEA in May 2023 and approval
of MNRE.

Total 2700 acres of Land (100%) has been acquired ftill
date for Jhansi Solar Power Park, which is on 30 years
lease and it includes (2431.83) Private land and 263.77-acre
Govt./ Gram Sabha land. District Administration, Jhansi has
finalized lease rent as ¥20,000/- per acre per year with a
provision of an escalation @ 5% after every 3 years. Signing of
lease deed was started on 30.06.2021.

PROJECT COST: The Detailed Project Report of Jhansi Solar
Park was approved by Ministry of New and Renewable
Energy on 20.06.2022. The revised and optimized cost of the
JhansiSolar Parkis¥331.71 Crore.

SOURCES OF FUNDING:

The Jhansi Solar Park is proposed to be funded from the
following sources

SI.No. Source Amount (3Cr.)
1 Equity 20.00

2 Central Financial Assistance 99.51

3 Upfront charges 180.00

4 Debt funding 324119

POWER EVACUATION — INTERNAL: The MoU/Agreement
was signed between TUSCO Ltd & PGCIL (POWERGRID) on
21.06.2023 for the implementation of Internal Power
Evacuation System for 600 MW Jhansi Solar Power Park.

Total 12 acre of land is proposed for the 2 pooling sub-station
(PSS). PGCIL has awarded the works to M/s Blue Star for
Package-1 (Substations & Transmission lines) and to M/s

TOSHIBA for Package-2 (Transformers). At PSS-1 location: All
13 nos. of tower foundations work have been completed; 2
nos. ICT foundations work has been completed, and 2 nos. of
transformers have reached at project site. At PSS-2 location: 13
nos. (out of 18) of tower foundations work have been
completed; 3 nos. ICT foundations work has been completed;
Culvert Casting for internal road has been completed.

600 MW Jhansi Solar Park: Work of Internal Power Evacuation is under Progress

POWER EVACUATION — EXTERNAL: The Land Use
MoU/Agreement was signed between TUSCO Ltd. & UPPTCL
on 20.06.2023 for handover of 75 acre of land for
Construction of 220/400KV Grid Sub-station (GSS) at village-
Jalalpura, Distt. Jhansi. Work for construction of GSS has
been awarded by UPPTCL to M/s KPTL (Kalpataru Power

Transmission Limited), Noida. Civil & Electrical Works are
under progress and work is scheduled to be completed by
March’26. The power from Jhansi Solar Power Project will be
evacuated through 2 nos. 33/220 kV pooling sub-stations &
further through 220/400 kV Grid Sub-Station to Main Grid.

TUSCO LIMITED
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600 MW Jhansi Solar Park: External Power Evacuation Work under progress

FENCING WORK AT THE PROJECT: Earlier 45 km of fencing
work was completed by M/s UPRNN & M/s A.S.
Construction & Suppliers for Jhansi Solar Park. Balance
Civil infrastructure work has been awarded to M/s Suresh
Chand Gupta through open tender on 06.01.2025.
Approx. 70 km of balance fencing work has been
completed, foundation work of Admin building and other
works are under progress.

SOLAR PROJECT DEVELOPER (SPD) & POWER PURCHASE:
TUSCO invited the tender for selection of SPD in Aug’
2024 based on solar park charges as bidding parameter
and engaged M/s Hinduja Renewables Pvt. Ltd. as SPD
in Jan’ 2025. Signing of agreements with SPD is under
progress and Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) is to be
arranged by the SPD.

CENTRAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE: A total CFA of 372 Crore
against the achievement of different milestones (50% land
acquisition, Financial Closure & Award of work of Pooling
Stations) has been received from MNRE till date against
total applicable CFA of ¥99.51 Cr. In addition to above,
%25 Lakh has been reimbursed by MNRE on account of
preparation of DPR.

STATUS OF FUNDING:

As per approved DPR, the Company has allocated equity of
320 Crore out of paid up share capital of ¥45.00 Cr towards
Jhansi SPP and CFA of 372 Crore has been received till date.
The Company has also tied up debt funding for Jhansi Project
to the extent of ¥140.47 crore from REC Limited out of which
%59. Cr has been withdrawn till date. Interest amount of

Boundary Fencing at Jhansi Solar Park

363.84 Lakh has been paid up to 31.01.2024 and thereafter,
RECL has been requested for capitalization of Interest till
COD of the project and ¥4.908 Cr. has been capitalized in the
books of accounts till31.03.2025.

EXPENDITURE:

A sum of approx. ¥141.97 Cr. has been spent on Jhansi
Project till 31.05.2025.

STATUS OF 600 MW LALITPUR SOLAR POWER PARK (LSPP)
LAND ACQUISITION FOR LALITPUR SOLAR PARK:

600 MW UMREPP in Lalitpur is being established in Talbehat
Tehsil of Lalitpur district in U.P. The land targeted for Lalitpur
Solar Power Park for acquisition on 30 years lease basisis 2700
acres as per DPR, which is in line with the National Electricity
Plan 2023 issued by CEAin May 2023 and approval of MNRE.

Total 2379.71 acres of Land (88%) has been acquired till date for
Lalitpur Solar Power Park, Govt land in possession on lease basis
is 1317.80 Acre (48.80% of 2700 Arce) & Pvt land acquired on
lease basis is 1061.91 Acre. District Administration, Lalitpur has
finalized lease rent as ¥20,000/- per acre per year with a
provision of an escalation @ 5% after every 3 years. The
signing of lease deed was started on 29.07.2021.

D
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COST OF SOLAR PARK:

The DPR of Lalitpur has also been approved by MNRE on
04.12.2023. The revised and optimized cost of the Solar Park
isat3347.79Cr.

SOURCES OF FUNDING:

The Project is proposed to be funded from the following
sources:

SI.No. Source Amount (T Cr.)
1 Equity 20.00
2 Central Financial Assistance 104.34
3 Upfront charges 180.00
4 Debt funding 43.45

APPOINTMENT OF PMC:

M/s GERMI has been engaged for providing PMC services for
600 MW Lalitpur Solar Park.

POWER EVACUATION — EXTERNAL:

The Land Use MoU/Agreement has been signed between TUSCO
Ltd. & UPPTCL on 17.07.2023 for handover of 81.89 acre of land
for Construction of 220/400/765KV Grid Sub-station (GSS) at
village-Khandi, Distt. Lalitpur by M/s UPPTCL. Work for
construction of GSS has been awarded by UPPTCL to M/s KPTL
(Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited). Works are under
progressand are scheduled to be completed by May’2026.

POWER EVACUATION —INTERNAL:
2 Nos. 33/220 kV Pooling Substations are proposed in Park to

Review of the progress of ongoing civil work by CEO TUSCO
Limited at Lalitpur Solar Park

SOLAR POWER DEVELOPER (SPD) & POWER PURCHASE
AGREEMENT:

Lalitpur Solar Power Project is to be implemented by NTPC-REL
(awholly owned subsidiary of NGEL), as SPD. The arrangement
of Power Purchase agreement is under Solar Project Developer
(SPD) scope. NTPC REL has won the 1000 MW capacity in the
Tariff Based Competitive Bidding conducted by UPPCL and
signing of PPAwith UPPCLis in progress. Further, the tender for
Balance of System (BoS) for Lalitpur solar project has been
floated by NTPC-REL on 3" Jan 2025 & the last date of bid
submission was 10.06.2025. Tender has been opened, and
evaluationisin progress.

evacuate power from Solar Park to GSS through 220 kV
Transmission Lines. The work is being executed in two
packages. Work of Pooling substations including trans-
mission lines (package-1) has been awarded through open
tender on 25.03.2025. The work of Transformer (package-2)
has been awarded to M/s ATLANTA Electricals Limited on
20.05.2025. Works are under progress and are scheduled to
be completed by May’2026.

CIVILINFRASTRUCTURE WORKS AT THE PROJECT:

Earlier 25 km of fencing work was completed by M/s Bundela
Associates. Balance Civil infrastructure works within solar parks
are being implemented by M/s MECON. fencing work, admin
buildingand Internal roads & drainage works are under progress.

STATUS OF FUNDING:

As per approved DPR, the Company has allocated equity of
%20 Crore towards Lalitpur SPP out of total paid up capital of
345.00 Cr. Central Finance Assistance (CFA) of 324 Cr. has
been received on account of Lalitpur Project on 10.01.2024
and Request for release of CFA (338.61Cr.) against 2"? & 3™
milestones has been submitted to MNRE on 08.04.2025 &
09.04.2025 respectively. Debt funding of ¥43.45 Crore for
financing SPPDis being arranged.

EXPENDITURE:

A sum of approx. ¥36.18 Cr. has been spent on account of
Lalitpur Project till 31.05.2025.

TUSCO LIMITED



STATUS OF CHITRAKOOT SOLAR POWER PARK (CSPP)

IN-PRINCIPLE APPROVAL FROM MNRE, GOI: LAND
ACQUISITION FOR CHITRAKOOT SOLAR PARK:

800 MW UMREPP in Chitrakoot is being established in Mau
Tehsil of Chitrakoot district in U.P. The land targeted for
Chitrakoot Solar Power Park for acquisition on 30 years lease
basisis 3600 acres as per DPR, which is in line with the National
Electricity Plan 2023 issued by CEA in May, 2023 and approval of
MNRE. Total 3288 acres of Land (91.33% w.r.t. 3600 acres) has
been acquired till date for Chitrakoot Solar Power ParkGovt land
in possession on lease basis is 1249.50 Acre & Pvt land acquired
on lease basis is 2038.45 Acre. District Administration,
Chitrakoot, has finalized the lease rent as ¥17,000/- per acre per
year with a provision of an escalation @ 5% after every 3 years.
The signing of the lease deed started on 25.01.2022.

COST OF SOLAR PARK:

The DPR of Chitrakoot has also been approved by MNRE on
26.12.2024. The cost of the Solar Park is Rs.485.26 Cr as per
approved DPR.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Sources of Funding:

The Chitrakoot Solar Park is proposed to be funded against
proposed capital expenditure mentioned in DPR from the
following sources:

SI.No. Source Amount (T Cr.)
1 Equity 16.50
2 Central Financial Assistance 145.58
3 Upfront charges 180.00
4 Debt funding 143.18

APPOINTMENT OF PMC:

M/s GERMI has been engaged for providing PMC services for
800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Park.

POWER EVACUATION —EXTERNAL:

49.50 acres of land construction of Grid Substation (GSS) by
UPPTCL has been handed over to UPPTCL on 03.05.2024. GSS
is to be constructed by UPPTCL under the GEC-ll scheme. The
Tender for GSS construction has been floated by UPPTCL &
work is yet to be awarded by UPPTCL.

POWER EVACUATION - INTERNAL:

2 Nos. 33/220 kV Pooling Substations are proposed in
Park to evacuate power from Solar Park to GSS through
220 kV Transmission Lines. The work of 220 kV AIS sub-
station Package (as per yesterday’s Board resolution)....... has
been awarded to M/S safety controls and services private
limited at ¥98,56,53,778.00, to be completed in 12 months’
time. Further, the work of “Design, engineering, manu-
facturing, testing at manufacturer’s works, supply, trans-
portation, unloading and delivery at site including insurance
& storage, erection, testing and commissioning of 33/220 kV
Power Transformers with rated capacity of 4 nos. x 125 MVA
and 3 nos. x 100 MVA for pooling sub-stations (PSS 1 and PSS
2) at 800 MW Chitrakoot solar project” has been awarded to
M/s Atlamta Electricals Ltd. at a cost of X70,38,04,249.00/-,
to be completed in a total time period of thirteen (13)
months.

CIVILINFRASTRUCTURE WORKS AT THE PROJECT:

Civil infrastructure works within solar parks are being
implemented by M/s MECON. Fencing work, admin building
and Internal roads & drainage works are under progress.

SOLAR POWER DEVELOPER (SPD) & POWER PURCHASE
AGREEMENT:

Chitrakoot Solar Power Project is to be executed by NTPC-REL
(a wholly owned subsidiary of NTPC Green Energy Ltd.), as
SPD. The arrangement of Power Purchase agreement is
under Solar Project Developer (SPD) scope. NTPC REL has
won the 1000 MW capacity in the Tariff Based Competitive
Bidding conducted by UPPCL and signing of PPA with UPPCL s
in progress. Further, the tender for balance of system (BoS)
of Chitrakoot solar project has been floated by NTPC-REL on

D
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3 Jan 2025 & the last date of bid submission was 10.06.2025.
The tender has been opened and evaluationisin progress.
STATUS OF FUNDING: -

As per approved DPR, the Company has allocated equity of
$16.50 Crore towards Chitrakoot SPP out of total paid up
capital of ¥45.00 Cr. CFA of 58.24 Crore has been released
by MNRE on 30.03.2025 for achieving first two Milestones.
The loan agreement for term loan (3143.18 Cr.) for the
development of Chitrakoot Solar Park has been signed with
M/s REC Ltd. on 15.05.2025.

EXPENDITURE:

A sum of approx. 29.81 Cr. has been spent on account of
Chitrakoot Project till 31.05.2025.

STATUS OF PUMPED STORAGE PLANT (PSP) in U.P.:

MoU was signed between M/s THDCIL and GoUP on
17.01.2024 for establishing an Off stream closed loop PSP

with an installed capacity of 1200 MW in Bashuhari/Vadela
village, Tehsil Robertsganj, Sonbhadra District, U.P. GoUP has
accorded in principle approval to THDCIL on 25.07.2024 to
develop the above-mentioned PSP.

Later, implementation of the project was handed over to TUSCO
Ltd. to take up further development activities. Tata Consulting
Engineers Limited (TCE) were entrusted by THDCIL with the task
of preparation of PFR of PSP, Sonbhadra on 13.05.2024. PFR of
the project has been prepared. Presently, tenders are being
invited for preparation of DPR of the PSP project.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:-

As on 31°%* March 2025, the Authorized share Capital of the
Company is ¥50.00 Cr. and Paid up capital is ¥45.%0 Cr. The
Paid-up share capital is held in the ratio of 74:26 respectively
by THDCand UPNEDA.

The financials of the Company as on 31°* March 2025 and as on 31** March 2024 are as under: % (in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31°* March 2025 31* March 2024

Turnover . -
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (PBT) (57.50) (73.91)
Less: Financial Charges
e (5750 2
Less: Depreciation
Net Profit / Loss before Taxation (PBT) (57.50) (73.91)
Deferred Tax asset 10.17 15.56
Profit / (Loss) after taxation (PAT) (47.33) (58.35)
Provision for proposed Dividend - -
Dividend Tax - -
Transfer to General Reserve (47.33) (58.35)

BREAKUP OF ASSETS (% in Lakhs)

= Right of Use Assets
« Capital Work in Progress
= Other Assets

TUSCO LIMITED
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REVENUE MODEL
As per the DPR of Projects, the revenue for the Company shall be on account of annual Operation and Maintenance charges to be
collected from the Solar Power Developersin line with MNRE Scheme.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH REC LTD. FOR DEVELOPMENT OF 800 MW

SOLAR POWER PARK CHITRAKOOT
TUSCO Ltd and REC Ltd has signed a loan agreement of ¥143.18 Cr. at

TUSCO office, Lucknow on 15.05.2025. The Loan agreement was
signed in order to meet the capital requirement of under construction
800 MW Chitrakoot Solar Power Park. The agreement was signed by
Shri Manoj Sardana, CEO on behalf of TUSCO Ltd. and Shri Shambhu
Shanker Gupta, Chief Program Manager on behalf of REC Ltd and Shri
Ashish Bajpai, Senior Manager on behalf of PNB (Escrow account).

Signing of Loan Agreement with M/s. REC Ltd
EMPLOYEES PARTICIPATION, WELFARE ACTIVITIES AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

1. Swachhta Pakhwada Campaign at TUSCO Limited

TUSCO Limited observed Swachhta Pakhwada Campaign from May 16" to May 31, 2024, across all offices i.e., Lucknow, Jhansi,
Lalitpur and Chitrakoot of TUSCO Ltd. The activities planned for Swachhata Pakhwada included pledge ceremony, essay writing
competitions at schools and office premises on “Personal Hygiene”, awareness campaigns through posters and banners at office
premises and nearby places, cleanliness drives and awareness regarding Menstrual Hygiene among women.

28] TUSCO LIMITED
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2. Celebration of World Environment Day

TUSCO Limited celebrated World Environment Day on 5th
June 2024 across all offices i.e.,Lucknow, Jhansi, Lalitpur and
Chitrakoot of TUSCO Ltd to mobilize and inspire effective and
collective action for the protection of Mother earth. This
year, the theme of the World Environment Day 2024 was
“Land Restoration, Desertification and Drought Resilence”

under the slogan “Our Land, Our Future. We are Generation
Restoration.” This year TUSCO Limited Celebrated World
Environment day by distributing and planting saplings at
Office Premise. Shri Manoj Sardana, CEO, TUSCO Limited
encouraged everyone to plant few saplings annually to
combat global warming.

3. Celebration of International Yoga Day

TUSCO Limited celebrated 10th International Yoga Day with
the theme "Yoga for Self and Society" on 21% June 2024
across all officesi.e., Lucknow, Jhansi, Lalitpur and Chitrakoot

of TUSCO Ltd. The event, marked by great enthusiasm and
fervour, brought together employees from all Projects and
Offices, all united in the spirit of yoga to promote health and
well-being.

e 1]

5l [ 6P% Map Campra

au Musticl, Litar Pradesh 210204, India
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A
4. Celebration of 78th Independence Day The event reflected the organization's commitment to
TUSCO Limited commemorated 78" Independence Day the Nation and its enduring spirit of Unity and
with great enthusiasm and fervour across all offices i.e., Patriotism.

Lucknow, Jhansi, Lalitpur and Chitrakoot of TUSCO Ltd.

5. Celebration of National Sports Day Lalitpur, Chitrakoot actively participated in the different
TUSCO Limited observed National Sports Day 2024 from activities like Fit India Pledge, Carrom, Chess, Jumping
26th August to 31st August 2024 to honour the spirit of Rope, Lemon Balance Race, etc. The National Sports
Major Dhyan Chand and all our sports Heroes whose Day Celebration at the different project Offices invoked
dedication and achievements continue to inspire the a spirit of Participation and sportsmanship among the
nation. All Employees of TUSCO Limited Lucknow, Jhansi, employees.

TUSCO LIMITED
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Celebration of National Blood Donation Day

TUSCO Limited observed the National Blood Donation
Day on 01.10.2024 by taking Pledge at all its Units/
Project Offices, namely Jhansi, Lalitpur & Chitrakoot as
well as its Head Office at Lucknow. Pledge at each
location was respectively administered to the Staff of
TUSCO Ltd. by Sh. Manoj Sardana (CEO, TUSCO Ltd.) for
Lucknow Office and Unit Heads Sh. UB Singh (AGM) for

Jhansi Unit, Sh. A.P. Vyas (AGM) for Chitrakoot Unit and
Sh. A.K. Duggal (DGM) for Lalitpur Unit.

Everyone took the Pledge to be generous blood donors
at times of dire need as the act not only to saves lives
butalso ensures a continuous & safe supply of blood. The
day serves as a powerful reminder of the ongoing need
for blood donations, emphasizing the importance of
voluntary, non-remunerated blood donation.

TUSCO LIMITED

FITINDIA Freedom Run 5.0 organised at TUSCO Ltd.

FIT INDIA Movement was launched with a view to make
fitness an integral part of our daily lives. The mission of
the Movement is to bring about behavioral changes and
move towards a more physically active lifestyle. This
year's theme was “Swachh Bharat, Swasth Bharat”. In
this regard, Corporate Welfare Department, Rishikesh
by the way of Ministry of Power has informed that Govt.

of India is observing “Fit India Freedom Run 5.0”
from 02.10.2024 to 31.10.2024. In view of this, TUSCO
Ltd. observed Fit India Freedom Run 5.0 on dated
26.10.2024 at all its Units/Project Offices, namely
Jhansi, Lalitpur & Chitrakoot as well as its Head Office at
Lucknow to spread awareness regarding fitness among
employees.
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Special Campaign 4.0 organized at TUSCO Ltd.

TUSCO Ltd. observed Special Campaign-4.0, a month-
long movement (2" Oct-31%t Oct, 2024) to spread
awareness about “Swachhta Hi Sewa Hai” among
employees and outside public. In the line of
objective of the campaign “Institutionalizing Swachhta
& Reducing Pendency", TUSCO Ltd. organised the
following campaigns among various stakeholders under
the aegis of Special Campaign 4.0.

Talk Session on Cleanliness — Govt. Girls Polytechnic,
Lucknow dated: 02.10.2024

Essay Competition on Cleanliness — Govt. Girls
Polytechnic, Lucknow dated: 03.10.2024

Jute Bag & Biodegradable Garbage Bag Distribution —
Local Vendors at Prominent Places dated: 09.10.2024 &
10.10.2024

Identification of Obsolete Files & Storage Management
at Lucknow Office, TUSCO Ltd dated: 14.10.2024
Beautification of Office — Indoor Plant Distribution
dated:17.10.2024 & 25.10.2024-

Cleanliness Drive — Near UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti
Khand, Lucknow dated: 26.10.2024.

Celebration of Constitution Day:

TUSCO Limited observed the Constitution Day on
26.11.2024 by taking Pledge at all its Units/Project
Offices, namely Jhansi, Lalitpur & Chitrakoot as well as
its Head Office at Lucknow. Constitution Day also known
as 'Samvidhan Divas', is celebrated in our country on

26" November every year to commemorate the adop-
tion of the Constitution of India. On 26" November
1949, the Constituent Assembly of India adopted the
Constitution of India, which came into effect from 26t
January 1950.

TUSCO LIMITED
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10. Celebration of 76" Republic Day: 2025 to honour the spirit of India's democracy and the
TUSCO Limited at all its Units/Project Offices, namely values that shape our nation. As we celebrate Republic
Jhansi, Lalitpur & Chitrakoot as well as its Head Office at Day, we reflect on the strength, unity, and resilience that
Lucknow observed the Republic Day on 26 January makesour country truly remarkable.

11. Marathon 4.0 for Fitness foremployees of TUSCO Ltd.: Fitness Mantra". All Employees of TUSCO Limited at
A Marathon Walk of 10 KM was organized for different units participated in the walk and completed the
employees of TUSCO Ltd. at Lucknow, Jhansi, Lalitpur marathon within time.Through marathon, the organization
and Chitrakoot on 01/03/2025 led by Unit Heads at continues to emphasize the importance of work-life
respective locations under the "One Company, One balance, physical activity, and holistic well-being.

TUSCO LIMITED (33
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12. Celebration of International Women Day:
TUSCO Limited celebrated International Women Day at
TUSCO Limited, Lucknow on 7t" March 2024. At TUSCO
Limited, we are proud to celebrate the incredible

women who inspire us every day with their strength,
creativity, and leadership. Here's to building a future of
equality, respect, and endless possibilities. Let's continue
tolifteach other up—notjust today, but every day.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal Act 2013)

No. of cases reported during
the year 2024-25

No. cases under
process/investigation as on
end of the year 2022-23

No. of cases under
process/ investigation as on
end of the 2024-25

No. of cases disposed off
during the 2024-25

0 0

0 0

CAPITALSTRUCTURE & DIVIDEND

Share Capital:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is ¥50 Cr. The
paid-up share capital of the Company is ¥45 Cr. as on 31°*

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (as on 31°* March 2025)

March 2025. During the year, Company has allotted Equity
Shares Capital of rupee ¥5.00 Cr. to THDCIL and UPNEDA in
theratio of 74:26 respectively.

S. No. Category Total Shares % To Equity
1 THDC India Limited 3,33,000 74
2 Uttar Pradesh New and Renewable energy 1,17,000 26
Development Agency
Total 4,50,000 100

TUSCO LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

B THDC India Limited

W Uttar Pradesh New and
Renewable Energy
Development Agency
[(UPNEDA)

Dividend:

During the FY. 2024-25, Your Company has not paid any
dividend to its shareholders as company is not yet
operational.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES & SURPLUS

During the FY 2024-25, Your Company has incurred a loss of
%47.33 Lakhs.

AUDITORS

Your Company being Government Company, the appointment
of Statutory Auditors for the FY. 2024-25 is made by
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 of
the Companies Act, 2013. C&AG has appointed M/s Joy
Mukherjee & Associates, 104 - Ravindra Garden, Sec — E,
Aliganj, Lucknow, 226024 for the F.Y.2024-25.

The Board approved Financial Statements for the Financial
Year 2024-25 in its 22" Meeting held on 18" May 2025. The
Audit Report was provided by the Statutory Auditor on 19t
May 2025. The Financial Statements along with Audit Report
were submitted to C&AG. A copy of Statutory Auditors
Report, forthe FY. 2024-25is enclosed.

Management Replies on the Statutory Auditor's report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have given an
unqualified report on the Accounts of the Company for the
part of the financial year 2024-25. Hence, Management
replies of the Company are “Nil”.

Review of Accounts by Comptroller & Auditor General of
India. Comments of the C& AG

The Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India as
supplement to the Statutory Auditors' Report under Section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Accounts of the
Company alongwith Management Reply thereon for the year
ended March 31, 2025 are enclosed.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A copy of Statutory Auditors Report, CRAG Comments and
the Financial Statements for the FY. 2024-25 is enclosed in
the Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES GIVEN,
INVESTMENTS MADE AND SECURITIES PROVIDED

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013,

loans made, guarantees given or securities provided by a
company engaged in the business of financing of companies
or of providing infrastructural facilities in the ordinary course
of its business are not applicable to the Company, hence
informationis NIL.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL, ORDERS PASSED BY

THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING

THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material orders were passed by any

regulator or court or tribunal impacting the going concern

status and company's operations during the FY. 2024-25.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In compliance to section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act,

2013, the Directors hereby confirm the following:

(a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable

accounting standards had been followed along with

proper explanation relating to material departures;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and

applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at

the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a

going concern basis; and

(e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS DURING FY. 2024-25

The details of the Board Meetings held during the Financial

Year ending 31°* March 2025 are as under:

(b

-

~

(c

—
8
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S
S.No. Board Meeting Date of Board Meeting

1 15% Board Meeting 09.04.2024

2 16" Board Meeting 09.05.2024

3 17 Board Meeting 14.08.2024

4 18th Board Meeting 06.09.2024

5 19t Board Meeting 27.12.2024

6 20" Board Meeting 03.01.2025

7 21°* Board Meeting 19.03.2025

Details of number of Board meetings attended by Directors, number of other
fortheFY.2024-25.

Directorship/Committee Membership

Nominee Director, UPNEDA

Sr. | Directors No. of Board Number of Other
No. Meetings Meetings Directorships Other Positions
held attended held Chairman | Member/Shareholder
(including TUSCO Ltd.)

1. | Sh. R.K. Vishnoi, 7 7 4 4 -
Chairman

2 Sh. Bhupender Gupta, 7 7 3 - 2
Nominee Director, THDCIL

3. | Sh. Sandeep Singhal, 7 7 - - 1
Nominee Director, THDCIL

4 Sh. Anupam Shukla, 7 7 - - 1

Details of Directors/ KMP appointed/ ceased during the Financial Year 2024-25

S.No. | Name of Director
DIRECTOR

Appointment/Cessation

Date of appointment /cessation

1.

Shri Bhupender Gupta

Appointment

09.04.2024

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As per the Section 203(1) of Companies Act,2013, and
Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 every company belonging

to prescribed class or classes of companies shall have the

whole-time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP). Accordingly,
TUSCO Limited has following key managerial personnel
duringthe FY. 2024-

25.

SI. No. Name of and KMPs
1. ShriManojSardana, CEO, TUSCO Limited*
2. Shri Mridul Dubey, CFO, TUSCO Limited**
3. Shri A.P. Bajpai, CFO, TUSCO Limited***
4, ShriHimanshu Bajpai, CS, TUSCO Limited

* Appointment w.e.f. 15.04.2023

** Ceased as CFOon 14.06.2024
***Appointed as CFO on 14.08.2024
***CeasedasCFOon27.12.2024

TUSCO LIMITED
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INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

The manpower structure is reviewed from time to time to
align it with the organization’s requirements.

DISLOSURE ON REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government Companies are exempted
from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter
XIll. As your company is a Government company, the
information has not been included as a part of the Directors'
Report.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has entered
into material transaction with any of its related party
in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013.
Disclosure of Related Party Transactions are made in form
AOC-2is enclosed as required under clause (h) of sub-section
(3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information for the year is NIL as the project is presently
under construction.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

There is no risk management policy in place. However,
it is proposed to formulate the Risk Management Policy
after the commencement of commercial operations of the
company.

DECLARATION REGARDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Your Company being a Joint Venture Company, appointment
of Independent Directors is exempted as per notification
of MCA dated 05.09.2017 and as per Companies the
Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL REPORT

Extract of Annual Return of the Company in accordance to
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12
of the Companies (Management & Administration)
Rules,2014 is disclosed in website of the company and link
for accessing the Annual return is as below .Web Link of
Annual Return: https://tuscoltd.co.in/AnnualReturn

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

1. There are no material changes and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year i.e.
March 31, 2025 and the date of this report.
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2. Cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, are not required to be made and maintained
by the Company for the FY 2024-25.

3. The Company has not accepted any public deposits
during the financial year 2024-25.

4. Your Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial reporting. During
the year, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was
observed.
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The Board of Directors of your Company extends its
sincere gratitude for the invaluable support and cooperation
received from the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy
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Ministries, our esteemed bankers, and the District
Magistrates of Jhansi, Lalitpur and Chitrakoot, along with all
district-level officers and the U.P. Irrigation Department.
Their continued support has played a pivotal role in
furthering our initiatives.

We also express our heartfelt thanks to the farmers for their
active cooperation and commitment in the timely execution
of lease deeds, which marks a significant step forward in our
journey.

The Board sincerely appreciates the trust, confidence, and
unwavering support extended by all stakeholders, business
partners, and members of the TUSCO family. We take this
opportunity to place on record our deep appreciation for the
dedication, hard work, and enthusiasm exhibited by the
employees of TUSCO Ltd. across all levels. Their efforts
continue to be the backbone of our sustained growth and
progress. We also gratefully acknowledge the insightful
suggestions and constructive feedback provided by the
Statutory Auditors and the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, which have been instrumental in guiding us on the
path of continual improvement.

Lastly, | would like to thank my esteemed colleagues
on the Board for their invaluable support, and | look forward
to their continued guidance and encouragement in the
timestocome.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
(R.K. Vishnoi)

Chairman
DIN: 08534217

Place: LUCKNOW
Date:23.09.2025
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Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
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Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions
under third proviso thereto

il

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
(a) Name(s) oftherelated party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration ofthe contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salientterms of the contracts orarrangements or transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board
(g) Amount paid asadvances, if any

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Date(s)of approval by the Board, if any

(f) Amount paid asadvances, ifany

. Nil

: NA

: NA

: NA

: NA

: NA

: NA

: NA

: NA

. Nil

TUSCO LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°t March, 2025
CIN U40106UP2020G0I134504
Particulars Note As at 315t March, 2025 | As at 31°t March, 2024
No. In Lacs () In Lacs (%)
ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1,946.06 105.31
(b) Capital work-in- progress 3 13,618.35 8,605.35
(c) Other Intangible Assets 2 0.91 1.74
(d) Right of Use Assets 2 11,370.16 10,656.84
(e) Investment in Subsidiary Co. - -
(f) Financial Assets

(i) Loans -

(i) Others 6 - 46.28 34.48
(g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4A 90.71 80.53
(h) Non Current Tax Assets Net 4B 20.26 8.29
(i) Other Non-Current Assets 4C 6,553.60 3,080.34

2. Current Assets
(a) Inventories - -
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables -

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 5.54 1.16

(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 5A 5,936.34 1,330.24

(iv) Loans -

(v) Advances 6 -

(vi) Others - 5,941.88 -
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 - -
(d) Other Current Assets 8 2,785.15 359.72
Regulatory Deferral Account Debit Balance - -

TOTAL 42,373.36 24,264.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 9 4,500.00 4,000.00

(b) Other Equity 10 73.81 (211.86)

Total Equity 4,573.81 3,788.14
2. Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 11A | 6,454.64 2,941.38
(ia) Lease Liabilities 11A |12,034.00
(i) Non current Financial Liabilities - 18,488.64 10,794.81

(b) Other Non Current Liabilities 11B 15,603.57 4,830.20

(c) Provisions 11C - 0.49 0.13
3. Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ia) Lease Liabilities 12 1,005.47
(ii) Trade Payables

A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises 12 14.98
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 1,794.15

(iii) Others 12 812.49 3,627.09 1,862.88
(b) Other Current Liabilites 13 75.84 43.14
(c) Provisions 14 3.92 3.32
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Regulatory Deferral Account Credit Balance - -

TOTAL 42,373.36 24,264.00

TUSCO LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31°* March, 2025
CIN U40106UP2020G0I134504

Particulars Note As at 31t March, 2025 |As at 31%t March, 2024
No. In Lacs () In Lacs (%)

Material Accounting Policies 1

Disclosures on Financial Instruments and

Risk Managemen 1

Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts 20

Note 1 to 20 form integral part of the Accounts

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sdy- Sd/-
(R K Vishnoi) (Manoj Sardana) (C.P. Raturi)
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN:08534217 PAN : AGNPS1840H PAN : ABSPR0191G

Date: 18.05.2025

Place: Rishikesh/Lucknow
As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached

For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN006792C of ICAI

Sd/-
(CA J. Mukherjee)
Partner

Date: 19.05.2025
Membership No. 074602

Place: Lucknow

Sd/-
(Himanshu Bajpai)
Company Secretary

Membership No. 53310

TUSCO LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
FOR THE PERIOD COMMENCING FROM 01.04.2024 AND ENDING 31 March, 2025
Particulars Note No. As at 31%t March, 2025 As at 31%t March, 2024
In Lacs (%) In Lacs (%)
INCOME
Revenue from Continuing Operations - -
Other Income 16 52.39 52.66
Total Revenue 52.39 52.66
EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 17 106.94 123.62
Finance Costs - -
Depreciation & Amortisation - -
Generation Administration and Other Expenses 19 2.95 2.95
Total Expenses 109.89 126.57
Profit Before Tax (57.50) (73.91)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Income Tax - -
Deferred tax- (Asset)/ Liability 4 (10.17) (15.56)
Profit After Tax (47.33) (58.35)
I. Profit For The Period from continuing operations (47.33) (58.35)
Il. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(i) Items that will not be classified to Profit or Loss:
(ii) Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income (I+11) (47.33) (58.35)
Earning per Equity Share from contitnuing opreration in Rupees () in Rupees (X)
Basic (11.81) (15.44)
Diluted (11.54) (15.44)
Material Accounting Policies 1
Disclosures on Financial Instruments & Risk Management 1
Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts 20
Note 1 to 20 form integral part of the Accounts
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(R K Vishnoi) (Manoj Sardana) (C.P. Raturi) (Himanshu Bajpai)
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

DIN:08534217

Date: 18.05.2025
Place: Rishikesh/Lucknow

PAN : AGNPS1840H

PAN : ABSPR0191G

As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN006792C of ICAI

Sd/-

(CA J. Mukherjee)

Date: 19.05.2025
Place: Lucknow

Partner

Membership No. 074602

®

Membership No. 53310

TUSCO LIMITED
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD COMMENCING FROM 01.04.2024 AND ENDING 31°* March, 2025
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In Lacs ()

PARTICULARS

For the Period Ended

31°t March, 2025

For the Period Ended
31°t March, 2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax
Profit Before Tax including movements in regulatory
deferral account balances
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation
Depreciation- Irrigation Component
Provisions
Finance Cost
Profit on Sale of Assets
Loss on Sale of Assets
Interest on Bank deposits
Prior Period Adjustments through SOCIE
Exceptional Items
Cash Flow from Operating profit activities Before
Working Capital Changes
Adjustment For :-
Inventories
Trade Receivables (including unbilled revenue)
Other Assets
Loans and Advances ( Current + Non Current)
Minority Interest
Trade Payable and Liabilities
Provisions (Current + Non Current)
Net Movement in Regulatory Deferal Account Balance
Cash Flow From Operative Activities Before Taxes
Corporate Tax
Net Cash From Operations (A)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in:-
Purchase of Fixed Assets and CWIP
Proceeds of Fixed Assets and CWIP
Capital Advances
Grants
Interest on Bank deposits
Late Payment Surcharge
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (B)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital (Including Pending Allotment)
Repayment of Borrowings- Non Current
Proceeds of Borrowings- Non Current
Borrowings- Current
Lease Liability
Interest and Finance Charges
Dividend & Tax on Dividend

(52.39)

(2830.30)
(11.98)
4,314.73
0.95

(6541.27)
13.18
(3080.19)
10,773.37
52.39

(4606.10)

833.00

3,513.26

(1278.62)
(1038.14)

(57.50)

(57.50)

(52.39)

(109.89)

1,473.40
1,363.51

1,363.51

(3388.62)

(61.01)
(4.21)
3,710.67
1.3

(5040.76)
4.01
(2752.56)
2380.20
52.66

546.92

130.00

2,941.38
(849.31)
(931.96)

0.00

TUSCO LIMITED

(73.91)

(73.91)

(52.67)

(126.58)

3,646.75
3,520.17

3,520.17

(4809.53)
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A
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD COMMENCING FROM 01.04.2024 AND ENDING 31 March, 2025 In Lacs (3)
PARTICULARS For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities ( C) 2,029.50 1,290.12
D. NET CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) 4.38 0.75
E. OPENING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 1.16 0.41
F. CLOSING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(D+E) 5.54 1.16
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(R K Vishnoi) (Manoj Sardana) (C.P. Raturi) (Himanshu Bajpai)
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN:08534217 PAN : AGNPS1840H PAN : ABSPR0191G Membership No. 53310

Date: 18.05.2025
Place: Rishikesh/Lucknow
As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN006792C of ICAI

Sd/-
(CA J. Mukherjee)
Date: 19.05.2025 Partner
Place: Lucknow Membership No. 074602

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY

A. Equity Share Capital For the period Ended 31-Mar-2025

In Lacs (%)
Particulars Note No. As at 31-Mar-2025
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 4,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period 500.00
Closing Balance at the end of the reporting period 4,500.00
B. Equity Share Capital For the period Ended 31-Mar-2024

In Lacs (3)
Particulars Note No. As at 31-Mar-2024
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 3500.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period 500.00
Closing Balance at the end of the reporting period 4000.00

@ TUSCO LIMITED
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C. Other Equity For The Period Ended 31 March, 2025
In Lacs ()
Particulars Note Share Application Reserve & Other Total
No. Money Pending Surplus Comprehensive
Allottment Retained Income Acturial
Earnings Gain/ (Loss)
Opening Balance (I) - (211.86) - (211.86)
Profit For The period (47.33) (47.33)
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income - (259.19) - (259.19)
Dividend - -
Tax On Dividend - -
Transfer to Retained Earnings (1) (259.19) (259.19)
Closing Balance (I+11+IlI+1V) - (259.19) - (259.19)
D. Other Equity For The Period Ended 315 March, 2024, Statement of Change In Equity
In Lacs ()
Particulars Note Share Application Reserve & Other Total
No. Money Pending Surplus Comprehensive
Allottment Retained Income Acturial
Earnings Gain/ (Loss)
Opening Balance (1) - (153.51) - (153.51)
Profit For The period (58.35) (58.35)
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income = (58.35) = (58.35)
Dividend - -
Tax On Dividend - -
Transfer to Retained Earnings (II) (58.35) (58.35)
Closing Balance (I+II+III+IV) - (211.86) - (211.86)

Sd/-
(R K Vishnoi)
Chairman
DIN:08534217

Date: 18.05.2025
Place: Rishikesh/Lucknow

Date: 19.05.2025
Place: Lucknow

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Manoj Sardana) (C.P. Raturi)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AGNPS1840H PAN : ABSPB0191G

As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN006792C of ICAI

Sd/-
(CA J. Mukherjee)

Partner
Membership No. 074602

Sd/-
(Himanshu Bajpai)
Company Secretary

Membership No. 53310

TUSCO LIMITED
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Note-1 Company Information and Material Accounting

1.1

1.2
1.2.1

1.2.2

123

2.1

Policies
Reporting entity and its General Information

TUSCO Limited (the “Company”) is a company
domiciled in India and limited by shares (CIN:
U40106UP2020G0I1134504) and is a Joint Venture
Company of THDC India Limited and Uttar Pradesh
New and Renewable Energy Development Agency
(UPNEDA). The shares of the Company are held by
THDC India Limited and UPNEDA in the ratio of 74:26.
The address of the Company's registered office is 4th
Floor, UPNEDA Bhawan, Vibhuti Khand, Gomti Nagar,
Lucknow, (U.P.) 226010 with the object to identify,
survey, plan, promote, develop, operate, maintain
Solar Parksin India and abroad.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared on
going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, and other provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (to the extent notified and applicable).

These financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR
has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except as
stated otherwise.

Material Accounting Policies

A summary of the material accounting policies
appliedin the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the financial statements.

Estimates & Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Although such estimates

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5
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and assumptions are made on a reasonable and
prudent basis taking into account all available
information, actual results could differ from these
estimates and assumptions. Such differences are
recognized in the year in which the actual results are
crystallized.

Capital work in progress

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction
(including a project) is carried at cost under Capital
work in Progress. Such costs comprise purchase price
of asset including import duties, non-refundable
taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates)
and costs that are directly attributable to bring the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

Deposit works are accounted for on the basis of
statements of account received from the Agencies
concerned.

In respect of supply-cum-erection contracts, the
value of supplies received at site is treated as Capital-
Work-in-Progress.

Claims for price variation in case of contracts are
accounted for on acceptance.

Cost directly attributable to projects under
construction include costs of employee benefits,
expenditure in relation to survey and investigation
activities of the projects, cost of site preparation,
initial delivery and handling charges, installation and
assembly costs, professional fees, depreciation on
assets used in construction of project, and other
costs attributable to construction of projects. Such
costs are allocated on systematic basis over
Construction projects/Capital Work in Progress.

Property Plant & Equipment (PPE)

PPE is initially measured at cost of acquisition/
construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required less depreciation
and impairment loss if any. The cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition/construction of the asset. In cases where

TUSCO LIMITED
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final settlement of bills with contractors is pending,
but the asset is complete and ready for use,
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject
to necessary adjustments, in the year of final
settlement.

Spares parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment meeting the recognition criteria are
capitalized. The carrying amount of those spare
parts that are replaced is derecognized when no
future economic benefits are expected from their
use or upon disposal. Other spare parts are carried
as inventory and recognized in the statement of
profitand loss on consumption.

Cost of replacement, major inspection repair of
significant part is capitalized if the recognition
criterionis met.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the
assetis derecognized.

PPE created on land not belonging to the Company,
but under the control and possession of the
Company, isincludedin PPE.

Depreciation & Amortization

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from
Property, Plant & Equipment during the year is
charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on
which the asset s ready for use /disposal.

Depreciation is charged on straight-line method
following the rates notified by the Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (CERC) for the purpose of
fixation of tariff. In case of addition and change in
cost of asset due to increase/decrease in long-term
liability on account of exchange fluctuations, award
of Courts, etc., revised unamortized depreciable
amount is provided prospectively over the residual
useful life of the asset.
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Laptops provided to employees under Laptop
scheme for official purpose are being written off over
a period of 3 years with nil salvage value. The
Depreciation on these itemsis charged @33.33% p.a.
onstraightline basis.

Temporary erections are depreciated fully
(100%) in the year ofacquisition /capitalization

by retaining 1/-as WDV.

In respect of Assets costing up to Rs.5000/- but more
than Rs.1500/- (excluding immovable assets) 100%
depreciationis provided in the year of purchase.

Low value items costing up to Rs.1500/-, which are in
the nature of assets are not capitalized and charged
torevenue.

Cost of Right-of-use Land is amortized over the lease
period or life of related project, whicheveris less.

Cost of computer Software is recognized as
intangible asset and amortized on straight line
method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years,
whichever is earlier. Other intangible assets are
amortized as per CERC regulation.

Spares parts procured along with the Plant &
Machinery or subsequently which are capitalized and
added in the carrying amount of such item are
depreciated over the residual useful life of the
related plant and machinery at the rates and
methodology notified by Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (CERC).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
oninitial recognition at cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

oftware (not being an integral part of the related
hardware) acquired for internal use, is stated at cost
of acquisition less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses if any.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses
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arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the
yearinwhenthe assetis derecognized.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded
at exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. At the balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of transaction.

Fair Value Measurement

Fairvalueisthe price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Normally at initial recognition,
the transaction price is the best evidence of fair
value.

However, when the Company determines that
transaction price does not represent the fair value, it
uses inter-alia valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which
fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy. This categorization is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementas awhole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly orindirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level

8.4

input thatis significant to the fair value measurement
isunobservable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized at fair value on a recurring basis. The

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

1)
2)

3)
10.4
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Company reviews the fair value techniques as to be
adopted at the end of each reporting period and
determines the fair value accordingly applying any of
the levels specified above deemed suitable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changesinvalue.

Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, specifically
requires bank deposits with more than 12 months
maturity to be disclosed as a part of 'other financial
assets' under financial, non-current assets. The
Guidance Notes (GN) mentions that the maturity
should be construed as remaining maturity of more
than 12 months.

Financial assets other than investment in
subsidiaries and joint ventures.

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is
cash, contractual obligation to receive cash or
another financial asset or to exchange financial asset
or financial liability under condition that are
potentially favorable to the Company. A financial
assetis recognized under the circumstances when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise cash and
cash equivalents, Bank Balances, Advances to
employees, security deposit, claims recoverable etc.

Based on existing business model of the company and
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets, classifications have been made as follows:

Financial Assets at amortized cost,

Financial Assets at fair value through other comp-
rehensive income, and

Financial Assets at fair value through Profit / Loss

Initial recognition and measurement: - All financial
assets except trade receivables are recognized
initially at fair value including the transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial

TUSCO LIMITED
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asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Where transaction price
is not the measure of fair value and fair value is
determined using a valuation method that uses data
from observable market, the difference between
transaction price and fair value is recognized in
Statement of Profitand Loss and in other cases spread
over life of the financial instrument using EIR
(Effective Interest Rate) method. EIR is calculated at
the end of every reporting period.

The company measures the trade receivables at their
transaction price as it does not contain a significant
financing component.

Subsequent measurement :- After initial measure-
ment, financial assets classified at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in
the profitorloss.

De-recognition :- A financial asset is derecognized
when all the cash flows associated with the said
financial asset has been realized or such right shave
expired

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual
obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the
Company.

The Company's financial liabilities include loans &
borrowings, trade and other payables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value
minus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of financial liabilities and subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Difference arising if any,
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
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the fair value at initial recognition is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss or in the “Expenditure
Attributable to Construction” if another standard
permits inclusion of such cost in the carrying amount
of an asset over the period of the borrowings using
the effective rate of interest.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. EIR is calculated at the end of every
reporting period Gains and losses are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.

11.4.2 Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any

11.5

12
12.1

12.2

discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profitand loss.

De-recognition - A financial liability is derecognized
when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to
be used for maintenance of Property, Plant and
Equipment and are valued at costs or net realizable
value (NRV) whichever is lower. The cost is
determined using weighted average cost formula and
NRYV is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the selling costs necessary to make
thesale.

Carrying amount of inventory is assessed on each
reporting date to reflect the same at NRV (Net
Realizable Value). Incase reduction of the carrying
amount, suitable adjustment is made by reducing the
carrying amount of the inventory to recognize at NRV
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and such amount reduced is also recognized as
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Subsequent to reduction in the inventory value in
case the NRV increases (up to the original cost), value
of inventory is enhanced to recognize at NRV and
incremental amount is recognized as income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. All inventory losses
occur in natural course of business is recognized as
expensesin the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Government Grants

Grants-in-Aid received from the Central/State
Government/ other authorities towards capital
expenditure is treated initially as non-operating
deferred income under non-current liability and
subsequently adjusted as income in the same
proportion as the depreciation written off on
the assets acquired out of such contribution/grants-
in-aid.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as aresult of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Such provisions are determined based on
management estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/ independent experts.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reflected in  the financial statements using current

estimates made by the management.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized when the
entity satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring promised goods or services to a
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customer. An asset is transferred when control is
transferred that is either over time or at a point in
time. The company recognizes revenue in respect of
amounts to whichit hasarighttoinvoice.

Income from consultancy work is accounted for on
the basis of actual progress/technical assessment of
work executed or cost reimbursable in line with terms
of respective consultancy contracts.

Late Payment Surcharge recoverable from trade
receivables for sale of energy and liquidated
damages/warranty claims are recognized when no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectivity exists.

Interest earned on advances to contractors as per the

terms of contract, are reduced from the cost incurred
on construction of the respective asset by credit to
related Capital Work-in-Progress Account

Value of scrap isaccounted for at the time of sale.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted forin
the year of acceptance. Other insurance claims are
accounted for based on certainty of realization

Expenditure

Prepaid expenses of Rs. 5,00,000/- or below in each
case, are accounted for in their natural heads of
accounts.

Material prior period errors in excess of Rs. 2.00 crore
are corrected retrospectively by restating the
comparative amounts for the prior periods presented
in which error occurred. If the error occurred before
the earliest period presented, opening balances of
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period
presented, are restated.

Net income/expenditure prior to Commercial
operation is adjusted directly in the cost of related
assetsand systems.

Amount at appropriate % of profit of previous year as
prescribed under DPE guideline is set aside as non-
lapsable fund for Research &Development.

Expenditure on CSR activities shall be made as per
the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act

TUSCO LIMITED
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2013. Any unspent amount shall be set aside as non-
lapsable fund as per DPE guidelines.

Provision for doubtful debts/advances/claims
outstanding over three years (except Government
dues) is made unless the amount is considered
recoverable as per management estimate. However,
debts/advances/claims shall be written off on case to
case basis when unreliability is finally established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the company are on secondment from
the parent company. Employee benefits include
provident fund, gratuity, post-retirement medical
facilities, leave encashment, long service award,
financial benefits scheme & other terminal benefits.
In terms of arrangement with the parent company,
the company makes contribution of the aggregate of
basic pay and dearness allowances for the period of
service rendered in the company towards PF &
Pension Scheme. For other terminal benefits, the
company makes suitable adjustments as advised by
the parent company. Actuarial gain / Losses if any shall
be accounted by parent company.

TUSCO Limited, being the subsidiary of THDCIL as
Public Limited Company has recruited 2 permanent
employees on the payroll of TUSCO Limited as Data
entry Operator (DEO) during the financial year 2023-
24.The Company inits 13th Board Meeting, the Board
of Directors (BOD) has passed and approved that
TUSCO Limited shall be governed by the Policies/
guidelines of THDCIL and all the HR policies &
guidelines, Service Rules and Service Conditions,
Recruitment Policies, Standing Orders, Delegation
/Sub delegation of Powers, Financial Rules, Policies
and Procedures for procurement of Goods and
Services and works & Services, Works Manual etc. of
THDCIL shall be applicable on TUSCO Limited as well.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction/exploration/ development
or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of cost of such asset until such time the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying
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assets are assets which necessarily take substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When
Company borrows funds generally and uses them for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed
based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings
that are outstanding during the period and used for
the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection
of the qualifying asset.

However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset, are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Such borrowing costs are apportioned on the average
balance of capital work in progress for the year. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the
periodin whichtheyareincurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
inventories

The asset is treated as impaired, when carrying cost
of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impaired loss is charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior
accounting periods is reversed if there is a change in
the estimate of the recoverable amount.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

The contactinvolves the use of an identified asset
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The Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of
theleaseand

The Company has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangementsinwhichitis alessee, except for:

Leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases)and

Low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. Right-of use assets and lease liabilities
include these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior tothe commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of
the underlying asset by the end of lease term or if the
cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase
option will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use
assets are depreciated /amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

Right of use assets is evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
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recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized
cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease liabilities are re-measured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment whether
it will exercise an extension or atermination option.

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income. In this case the tax is also
recognized directly in equity or in other

comprehensive income.
Current Income Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The current income
tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in India where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized based upon balance sheet
approach. Differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the company's financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit are accounted for
using the balance sheet method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable

TUSCO LIMITED
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temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in the instances where the
transaction affects neither the taxable profit or loss
nor the accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carryingamount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in other comprehensive income or
equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or equity. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax
treatments, the Company assesses whether a tax
authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax
treatment. If it concludes that the tax authority is
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unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases
and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
recognized. The effect of the uncertainty is recognized
using the method that, in each case, best reflects the
outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome
or the expected value. For each case, the Company
evaluates whether to consider each uncertain tax
treatment separately, or in conjunction with another
or several other uncertain tax treatments, based on
the approach that best prefixes the resolution of
uncertainty.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance
with the indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7.
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
Statement of cash flows is inclusive of cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet
presentation, Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowingsin current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Current versus non-current classification-

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the
Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset s classified as current whenitis:

Expected to berealized orintendedtobesoldo r
consumed in the normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months
afterthereporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is classified as current whenitis
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Expectedto be settledinthe normaloperating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

Having no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during
the financial year. Diluted earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity
share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
periods presented for any bonus shares issued during
the financial year.

Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to the
Company's shareholders are recognized as changes in
equity inthe period in which they are approved by the
shareholders and the Board of Directors respectively.

Miscellaneous

Each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the financial statements. Items of a
dissimilar nature or function are presented
separately unless they are immaterial.

The company has provided Bank Guarantee (BG) to
the relevant authority, issued by company's banker
and the same is backed by FDR bearing interest as per

26.3
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banking policy. FDR and Interest has been accounted
inthe TUSCO Ltd accountas per INDAS 7.

Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial Statements

The amendment has replaced the term 'significant’
with 'material'. It requiresentities to disclose their
material accounting policy information instead of
their significant accounting policies since 'material' is
definedin Ind and is well understood by stakeholders.
Also, provides guidance in determining whether
accounting policy information is material or not.

Disclosures on Financial Instruments and Risk
Management.

IND AS 107 is applicable on financial instruments. The
definition of financial instrument is inclusive and cater
financial assets and financial liabilities. Explained
below are the nature and extent of Risks arising from
financial instruments to which TUSCO LTD. is exposed
during the period, and also how TUSCO LTD. is
managing these risks.

(i) CreditRisk.

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The company is exposed to credit risks from
deposits with bank.

(ii) Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not
be able to meet its present and future cash

and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable Losses.

Management of those Risks (mitigate)

Credit Risk

The Company considers factors such as track record,
size of the market reputation and service standards
and approved by Chairman to select the Bank with
which, balance and deposits are maintained.

Liquidity Risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies main-

taining sufficient cash availability to meet obligations
whendue.

TUSCO LIMITED
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Note :-4A
DEFERRED TAX ASSET
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31%t March, 2024
Deferred Tax Asset* 90.71 80.53
Total 90.71 80.53
* As per Notes on Account no.(20) Other explanatory notes on Accounts (Sub point 5)
Note :-4B
NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS NET
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31° March, 2025 As at 31°* March, 2024
Unsecured
i) Others 0.00 0.00
ii) Accrued Interest on Advances 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Tax Deposited
- TDS deducted (TDS deducted by PNB Bank on Interest Amount) 20.26 8.29
TOTAL 20.26 8.29
Note :-4C
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31%t March, 2025 As at 31°t March, 2024
Prepaid Expenses 393.07
Interest Accrued but not due
Deferred Employee Cost due to Fair Valuation
Sub Total 393.07
Unsecured
i) Others 6,157.10 3,079.50
ii) Accrued Interest on Advances 3.43 0.84
6,553.60 3,080.34
TOTAL 6,553.60 3,080.34
Note :-5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31t March, 2025 As at 31°t March, 2024
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances With Banks (Including Auto sweep) -Punjab
National Bank Vibhutikhand (A/c no. 6194002100000270) -
With original maturity of less than 3 months." 5.54 1.16
TOTAL 5.54 1.16
Note :-5A
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31t March, 2025 As at 31t March, 2024
Other Bank Balances
Balances With Banks (Including Auto sweep) -Punjab
National Bank Vibhutikhand (A/c no. 6194002100000270) -
With original maturity of less than 12 months." 5,936.34 1,330.24
TOTAL 5,936.34 1,330.24

TUSCO LIM:TED
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Note :-6
CURRENT- FINANCIAL ASSETS- OTHERS
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31° March, 2025 As at 31°* March, 2024
Security Deposit 2.63 2.33
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 43.65 32.15
TOTAL 46.28 34.48
Note :-7
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
In Lacs (')
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31%t March, 2025 As at 31t March, 2024
Tax Deposited
- Advance tax 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 0.00 0.00
Note :-8
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31%t March, 2025 As at 31°t March, 2024
Prepaid Expenses 2,784.97 358.92
Interest Accrued - -
BER Assets held for disposal - -
Deferred Employee Cost due to Fair
Valuation - -
SUB-TOTAL 2,784.97 358.92
Other Advances ( Un Secured)
To Employees 0.18 0.80
To Others - -
SUB TOTAL -OTHER ADVANCES 0.18 0.80
TOTAL 2,785.15 359.72
Note :-9
SHARE CAPITAL
In Lacs (3)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31° March, 2025 As at 31° March, 2024
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.1000/- each 500,000 5,000.00 500,000 5,000.00
Issued Subscribed & Paid-up 450,000 4,500.00 400,000  4,000.00
Equity Shares of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up
TOTAL 450,000 4,500.00 400,000 4,000.00

TUSCO LIMITED
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Note :-9.1
DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES IN THE COMPANY
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31° March, 2025 As at 31° March, 2024
Number of Shares % Number of Shares %
Share holding more than 5 %
I. THDC India Ltd 333,000 74 296,000 74
Il. UPNEDA 117,000 26 104,000 26
TOTAL 450,000 100 400,000 100
Note :-9.2
RECONCILIATION OF NO. OF SHARES & SHARE CAPITAL OUTSTANDING
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31°t March, 2025 As at 31%t March, 2024
Number of Shares Inlacs (Z) Number of Shares In Lacs ()
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs.1000/- each 500,000 5,000.00 500,000 5,000.00
Opening 400,000 4,000.00 350,000 3,500.00
Issued 50,000 500.00 50000 500.00
Closing 450,000 4,500.00 400,000 4,000.00

Note: The company has only one class of shares having a par value of Rs. 1,000/- per share. The holders of the equity shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their share holding at
the meetings of the shareholders.

Note :-10
OTHER EQUITY
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31°t March, 2025 As at 31°t March, 2024
Share Application Money Pending
Allottment 333.00 -
Retained Earnings (259.19) (211.86)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
TOTAL 73.81 (211.86)
Note :-10.1
Reserve and Surplus
In Lacs (3)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31-Mar-2025 As at 31-Mar-2024
Opening Balance (211.86) (153.51)
Profit for the Year (47.33) (259.19) (58.35)
TOTAL (259.19) (211.86)
Note :-10.2
SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31°* March, 2025 As at 31°t March, 2024
Number of Shares % Number of Shares %
Share holding more than 5 %
|. THDC India Ltd 333,000 74 296,000 74
Il. UPNEDA 117,000 26 104,000 26
TOTAL 450,000 100 400,000 100
60)
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Note :-11 A
NON CURRENT- FINANCIAL LIABILITIES- BORROWINGS

In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31t March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

A. Secured

Term Loan from Financial Instuitions/Banks

Borrowings from RECL (For 600 MW Jhansi

Solar power Park ,TUSCO Ltd 6,454.64 2,941.38
(Repayable within 18 years on monthly instalment

presently carrying variable card Interest Rate @8.65%

with yearly reset)

B. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Unsecured 13,039.48 11,972.29
TOTAL 19,494.12 14,913.67
Less:
Current Maturities:
Lease Obligations- Unsecured 1,005.47 1,177.48
TOTAL 18,488.65 13,736.19
Note :-11 B
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
In Lacs (3)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31t March, 2025 As at 31%t March, 2024
Liabilities
Grant from MNRE 15,603.57 4,830.20
TOTAL 15,603.57 4,830.20
Note :-11 C
NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
(Figures In Parenthesis Represent Deduction)
In Lacs (%)
For the Period Ended 31°t March, 2025
Particulars Note As at Addition  Adjust- Utilisation As at
Note No. 1%t April, 2024 ment 315t March, 2025
I. Employee Related 0.13 0.35 0.00 0.00 0.49
II. Others 0.00 0.00 - - -
TOTAL 0.13 0.35 - 0.00 0.49
In Lacs (3)
For the Period Ended 31°* March, 2024
Particulars Note As at Addition  Adjust- Utilisation As at
Note No. 1%t April, 2023 ment 31%t March, 2024
I. Employee Related - 0.13 0.00 0.00 0.13
1. Others - 0.00 - - -
TOTAL - 0.13 - 0.00 0.13

TUSCO LIMITED (61)
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Note :-12
CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
In Lacs (%)
PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31° March, 2025 As at 31° March, 2024
Current maturity of Long Term Debt
(A) Current Maturities of Lease Obligations-
Unsecured" 1,005.47 1,177.48
TOTAL 1,005.47 1,177.48
Trade Payables
A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise 14.98 4.63
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprise 1,794.15 400.73
1,809.13 405.36
Liabilities
For Expenditure
For Micro And Small Enterprises. 0
For Others
Sundry Creditors for Work Capital
- Sundry Creditors for Services Capital
- Payable to Holding Company
-Others 0 0.00
Deposits, Retention Money From Contractors etc. 812.49 280.04
Less: Fair Value Adjustment- Security
Deposit/ Retention Money - 812.49 0.00
Defered Fair Valuation Gain- Security
Deposit/ Retention Money - -
Interest Accrued But Not Due - -
TOTAL 2,621.62 685.40
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,627.09 1,862.88
Note :-13
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
In Lacs ()
PARTICULARS Note No. As at As at
31%t March, 2025  31°t March, 2024
Liabilities
Grant 0.00 0.00
Other Liabilities 21.43 27.57
Income Tax TDS payable 42.32 8.87
GST TDS 10.22 5.16
CGST,SGST & IGST (Reverse Charge ) 1.87 1.54
TOTAL 75.84 43.14

TUSCO LIMITED
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Note :-14
CURRENT PROVISIONS
(Figures In Parenthesis Represent Deduction)
In Lacs (%)
For the Period Ended 31°t March, 2025
Particulars Note As at Addition Adjust- Utilisation As at
No. 01-04-2024 ment 315t March, 2025
I. Works - - - - -
Il. Employee Related 0.62 0.28 - - 0.90
lIl. Others
- Fees payable to Statutory
Auditor (Rs.2.16 Lacs Net of TDS)& Internal
Auditor (Rs.0.54 Lacs Net of TDS)" 2.70 0.32 0.00 - 3.02
TOTAL 3.32 0.60 - - 3.92
Note :-15
EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION
In Lacs (%)

Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended

No. 31t March, 2025 31 March, 2024
EXPENDITURE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 17
Salaries, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 937.50 753.08
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 74.78 64.54
Pension Fund 31.71 48.26
Gratuity 97.04 48.39
Welfare 27.23 22.76
Amortisation Expenses of Deferred Employee
Cost 0.00 1,168.26 - 937.04
OTHER EXPENSES 19
Rent
Rent for office 5.64 4.53
Rent for Employee Residence 0.00 5.64 0.00 4.53
Rate and taxes - 0.03
Power & Fuel 0.78 1.88
Insurance 0.00 -
Communication 12.37 11.61
Repair & Maintenance
Plant & Machinery - -
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts - -
Buildings 0.51 0.18
Others 4.45 4.96 4.45 4.62
Travelling & Conveyance 16.80 28.08
Vehicle Hire & Running 72.00 68.52
Security 0.00 0.00
Publicity & Public relation 2.59 5.03
Other General Expenses 488.56 301.85
Payment to Auditors 0.00 0.00
Loss on sale of Assets 0.00 0.00
Interest others 18 1,038.14 931.96
Depreciation 2 667.50 527.70
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (A) 3,477.60 2,822.84

TUSCO LIMITED (63
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Note :-15
EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION

In Lacs ()
Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
No. 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024

RECEIPTS
OTHER INCOME

Interest

From Others 0.33 0.33 0.16 0.16
Rent Receipts 16 .28 3.78
Sundry Receipts 16 20.32 0.50
TOTAL RECEIPTS (B) 23.98 4.44
NET EXPENDITURE BEFORE TAXATION 3,453.62 2,818.40
PROVISION FOR TAXATION - -
NET EXPENDITURE INCLUDING TAXATION 3,453.62 2,818.40
Acturial Gain/ (Loss) through OCI - -
Balance Brought Forward From Last Year 0.78 3,982.72
TOTAL EDC 3,454.40 6,801.12
Less:-
EDC Allocated To CWIP / Asset 0.00 6,800.34
EDC Of Projects Under Approval Charged To
Profit & Loss Account" - -
Balance Carried Forward To CWIP 3,454.40 0.78

Note :-16

OTHER INCOME

In Lacs (%)
Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
No. 31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024

Interest

On Bank Deposits 52.39 52.66

Employee Loans & Advances-

Adjustment on Account of Effective

Interest - -

Others - Interest from Bank 0.33 52.72 0.16 52.82
Rent Receipts 3.33 3.78
Sundry Receipts 20.32 0.50
Fair Value Gain- Security Deposit/

Retention Money - -
TOTAL 76.37 57.10
Less :

Transferred To EDC 15 23.98 4.44
TOTAL 52.39 52.66

TUSCO LIMITED
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Note :-17
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
In Lacs (%)
Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
No. 31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Salaries, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 1,044.44 876.71
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 74.78 64.54
Pension Fund 31.71 48.26
Gratuity 97.04 48.39
Welfare Expense 27.23 22.76
Amortisation Expenses of Deferred
Employee Cost - -
TOTAL 1,275.20 1,060.66
Less :
Transferred To EDC 15 1,168.26 937.04
Salaries, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 1,044.44 876.71
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 74.78 64.54
Pension Fund 31.71 48.26
Gratuity 97.04 48.39
Welfare Expense 27.23 22.76
Amortisation Expenses of Deferred
Employee Cost - -
TOTAL 106.94 123.62
Note :-18
FINANCE COSTS
In Lacs (3)
Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
No. 31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Finance Costs
Interest On Bonds - -
Interest On Domestic Loans = -
Interest On Foreign Loans - -
Interest On Cash Credit - -
FERV - -
Payment as per Income Tax Act - -
Interest Others* 1,038.14 931.96
TOTAL 1,038.14 931.96
LESS:-
Interest others transferred to EDC 1,038.14 931.96
TOTAL - -

TUSCO LIMITED

* Interest Others include Interest component on lease obligation
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Note :-19
GENERATION ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

In Lacs (%)
Particulars Note For the Period Ended For the Period Ended

No. 31t March, 2025 31t March, 2024
Rent
Rent for office 5.64 4.53
Rent for Employees Residence 0.00 5.64 0.00
Rate and taxes 0.00 0.03
Power & Fuel 0.78 1.88
Insurance 0.00 0.00
Communication 12.37 11.61
Plant & Machinery - 0.00
Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts - 0.00
Buildings 0.51 0.18
Others 4.45 4.96 4.45
0.00

Travelling & Conveyance 16.80 28.08
Vehicle Hire & Running 72.00 68.52
Security 0.00 0.00
Publicity & Public Relation 2.59 5.03
Other General Expenses * 488.56 301.85
Payment to Auditors 2.95 2.95
Loss on sale of Assets 0.00 0.00
Preliminary Expenses Written off
TOTAL 606.65 429.10
LESS:-
Transferred To EDC 15 603.70 426.15
TOTAL 2.95 2.95

* Includes Professional fee, Outsourcing of Manpower and Transit camps expenses etc.

TUSCO LIMITED
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NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
20. Other explanatory notes on accounts:
1. Capital Commitment-—
1.1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining (capital commitment) to be executed (net of advances) is X42,914.64 Lakhs
(PYX18,673.98)in FY 2024-25.
2. Company has been receiving FDRs with right to present before bank / financial institutions for claiming face value only
against EMD/ SD. The company has FDRs amounting to X 29.08 Lakh (PY X 0.62 Lakh) in FY 2024-25 towards EMD and
Security Deposit besides this deposits money from contractors amounting to 812.49 lakh (PY 280.04 lakh) in FY 2024-
25 asdisclosed in Note No. 12. The company has provided Bank Guarantee (BG) of X43.65 Lakhs (PYX32.15) in FY 2024-
25 to the appropriate authority, issued by company’s banker and the same is backed by FDR bearing interest as per
prevailing interest rate policy of the bank.
3. DPRofJhansiSPP, Lalitpur SPP and Chitrakoot SPP has been submitted to MNRE, GOI, and subsequently the same has
been approved by MNRE. Lease deed registrations with farmers of all three projects is in advance stage and the total
8,335.95 acres (600 MW Jhansi SPP, 600 MW Lalitpur SPP & 800 MW Chitrakoot SPP) has been acquired till 31.03.2025
whichis as follow:

Name of Solar Power Park
S.No. Description of Land 600 MW Jhansi 600 MW Lalitpur 800MW Chitrakoot
1 Total Land Required (In Acre) 2,700.00 2,700.00 3,600.00
2 Total Pvt. Land Acquired (In Acre) 2,409.74 1,054.31 2,030.14
3 Total Govt. Land Acquired (In Acre) 263.77 1,317.80 1,249.50
4 Total Land Acquired (In Acre)(2+3) 2,673.51 2,372.11 3,279.64
5 Total Land Acquired (%) 99.02 87.85 91.10

4. M/s Hinduja Renewables Energy Pvt. Ltd., through an open tender floated on 21.08.2024, was selected as the Solar
Project Developer (SPD) for the development of a 600 MW Solar Power Park at Tehsil Garautha, Jhansi, Uttar Pradesh,
on a Build-Own-Operate (BOO) basis. The Letter of Award (LOA) was issued to M/s Hinduja Renewables Energy Pvt. Ltd.
on 06.01.2025. As per terms of the Letter of Award (LOA), M/s Hinduja Renewables Energy Pvt. Ltd. was required to
execute the Contract Agreement, Implementation Service Agreement and Land Right-to-Use Agreement with TUSCO
Ltd. within 30 days from the date of issuance of the LOA. These agreements are to be signed by an authorized
representative of the company.TUSCO Ltd. has sent multiple communications to M/s Hinduja Renewables Energy Pvt.
Ltd (some of which are dated 10.03.2025, 27.02.2025, 20.02.2025), requesting them to sign the contract documents.

5. Disclosure as perInd AS 8-'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, from time to time. Below is a summary of the new standards and key
amendments that are effective for the first time for periods commencing on or after 1 April 2024:

(i) Lease liability in sale and leaseback — Amendments to Ind AS 116:-on 9 September 2024, the MCA notified the
narrow-scope amendments to the requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in Ind AS 116 which explain
how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the date of the transaction. The amendments specify that, in
measuring the lease liability subsequent to the sale and leaseback, the seller-lessee determines 'lease payments'
and 'revised lease payments'in a way that does not resultin the seller-lessee recognising any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use that it retains. This could particularly impact sale and leaseback transactions
where the lease paymentsinclude variable payments that do not depend onanindex or a rate.

(ii) Insurance Contracts - Ind AS 117 :- The MCA notified the new accounting standard Ind AS 117, 'Insurance
Contracts', on 12 August 2024 replacing Ind AS 104, 'Insurance Contracts'. The new standard requires an entity to
apply Ind AS 117 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

The Company has evaluated the above amendments and these are not applicable to the Company as it does not
have any such transactions.

TUSCO LIMITED
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Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”:-
(A) List of Related Parties:

‘5 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

(i) Parent:
Name of Company/Entity Principle Place of Operation
THDC INDIA LIMITED India
UPNEDA India
NTPC (Parent Company of THDC INDIA LIMITED) India

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel: -

Sl. No. Name Position Held Period
1. Shri. R.K.Vishnoi Chairman w.e.f. 06.08.2021
2. Shri Anupam Shukla Nominee Director w.e.f. 12.07.2022
3. Shri Manoj Sardana Chief Executive Officer w.e.f 15.04.2023
4, Shri Mridul Dubey Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 06.01.2023 upto 14.06.2024
5. Shri Anand Prakash Bajpai Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 14.08.2024 upto 27.12.2024
6. Shri Himanshu Bajpai Company Secretary w.e.f 08.10.2020

(iii) Other entities with joint control or significant influence over the Company.
The Company is a subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) w.e.f. 12.9.2020 controlled by THDC INDIA
LIMITED by holding majority of shares. Pursuant to Paragraph 25 & 26 of Ind AS 24, entities over which the same
government has control or joint control of, or significant influence, then the reporting entity and other entities shall
be regarded as related parties. The Company has applied the exemption available for government related entities
and have made limited disclosures in the financial statements.
Name and nature of relationship with Government :-

SI. No. Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship
1, NTPC Parent Company of THDC INDIA LIMITED
2. THDC INDIA LIMITED Holding Company (74.00%)
3. UPNEDA Shareholder (26.00%)
(iv) Transactions with related parties are as follows: - (X in Lakh)
Name of the Nature of Transactions by the Company For the Year ended For the Year ended
Company /Party 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
UPNEDA Office Lease Rent paid & Electricity Charges etc 18.06 8.19
Contribution received on account of allotment of 130.00 130.00
Equity Share Capital
Transactions pertaining to works contract for 0.00 308.49
UPRNN . .
Construction of Boundary fencing works etc.
Amount paid on account of rental expenses, 336.54 629.62
THDC INDIA statutory dues like CPF, GSLI, Pension etc. etc
LIMITED Contribution received on account of allotment 703.00 0.00
of Equity Share Capital
Uttar Pradesh Outsourcing of manpower 0.00 5.08
Purva Sainik
Kalyan Nigam
Ltd

TUSCO LIMITED
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UTILITY Outsourcing of manpower 146.81 132.33
POWERTECH
LIMITED (JV of
NTPC &
Reliance
Infrastructure
Limited)
Power Grid Consultancy Services and Construction of Internal 2499.94 2553.93
Corporation of Power Evacuation System at Solar Park Jhansi
India (PGCIL)
Rural Availment of Long Term Loan for 3000.00 2900.00
Electrification 600MW Jhansi Solar Power Park.
Corporation 513.26 105.22
Limited (RECL)
REC Power Review of project financial/Appraisal of 0.00 5.90
Development & DPR for 600MW Lalitpur Solar Power Park
Consultancy
Ltd.(RECPDCL)
M/s MECON LTD.| Civil Infrastructure Work for Lalitpur & Chitrakoot 2039.70 0.00
M/s NITCON LTD.| Outsourcing of Manpower 30.88 0.00
Outstanding balances with related parties are as follows:- (Zin Lakh)
Particulars For the Year ended 31.3.2025 For the Year ended 31.3.2024
Amount outstanding :
TO THDC INDIA LIMITED 312.80 185.60
TO UPNEDA 13.75 1040.00
TO PGCIL 0.00 0.00
TO UPRNN Ltd. 177.66 215.20
TO Uttar Pradesh Purva Sainik Kalyan 0.00 0.00
Nigam Ltd. JHANSI
TO UTILITY POWERTECH LIMITED 24.56 16.31
Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 6,454.64 2,941.38
(RECL)
M/s MECON LTD. 101.99 0.00
M/s NITCON LTD. 15.17 0.00

Compensation to Functional Directors & Key Managerial Personnel: Remuneration and allowances, other benefits and
expenses to key managerial personnel including Independent director's fees & expenses are X 106.94 Lakhs.

(Xin Lakh)
SI.No. | Description Year ended Year ended
31.3.2025 31.3.2024
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 95.54 107.78
2 Post Retirement & other Long Term Employee Benefits 11.40 15.84
3 Termination benefits 0.00 0.00
4 Share -based payment 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 106.94 123.62

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:-
(a) Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and condition and at market rates

representingarm's length value.

59)
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7. Earnings pershare (EPS)—Basic & Diluted
The elements considered for calculation of earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) are as under: -

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Net Profit after Tax (XLakh) (57.50) (58.35)

Weighted average no. of equity
shares used as denominator

- Basic 400547.95 378005.46
- Diluted 409992.60 378005.46
Earnings per Share. In Rupees (X) In Rupees X)
- Basic (11.81) (15.44)
- Diluted (11.54) (15.44)
Face Value per share X 1000 1000

8. Incompliance to the Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes” issued by the Ministry of Company Affairs, the net increase in the deferred
taxassets of X10.18 Lakh (X90.71 Lacs—X 80.53 Lacs) has been booked to Statement of Profit & Loss.

Particulars As at March 2025 (Xin Lakh) As at March 2024 (Xin Lakh)
Deferred Tax Asset 90.71 80.53
Total 90.71 80.53
(Xin Lakh)

Calculation of Deferred tax 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
a) Asset on Account of Depreciation
WDV of fixed asset as per IT Act 1957.48 126.79
WDV of fixed asset as per Books 1946.97 107.04
Difference 10.51 19.75
b) Asset on Account of Preliminary expenses
Preliminary Expenses allowable as deductible in future 0.00 8.00
C) Unabsorbed losses allowable in Future 349.89 292.22
Temporary Differences 349.89 300.22
Net amount of Temporary Differences 360.40 319.97
Tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Deferred Tax Asset 90.71 80.53

9 (I)AgeingSchedules of CWIP asat31.03.2025 & 31.03.2024 are as under :- (Zin Lakh)

Project Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

As at 31.03.2025
i) Projectin Progress 5,013.00 3,917.75 2,676.95 2,010.65 13,618.35

ii) Project temporarily
suspended

As at 31.03.2024

i) Project in Progress 3,917.75 2,676.95 1,370.05 640.60 8,605.35

ii) Project temporarily
suspended
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(ii) The Completion schedules for the projects which have exceeded their original cost & completion schedule as on

31.03.2025 areas under:- (Xin Lakh)
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Project
Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  |More than 3 years
As at 31.03.2025
600 MW Jhansi SPP 116.47 77.64 0.00 0.00 194.11
600 MW Lalitpur SPP 187.37 124.91 0.00 0.00 312.28
800 MW Chitrakoot SPP 227.17 227.17 0.00 0.00 454.34

10. Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31" March 2025 as required by Micro, Small & Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and the said outstandingis less than 45 days.

(1) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2025 & 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2025
(Rin Lakh)
Outstanding for following Periods from due date of Payment Total
Particulars Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(1) MSME 14.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.98
(i) Others 1580.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 1580.95
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
As on 31.03.2024
(Xin Lakh)
Outstanding for following Periods from due date of Payment Total
Particulars Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
(1) MSME 4.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.63
(i) Others 400.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.73
(iii) Disputed dues-MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(iv) Disputed dues-Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11. Disclosure asperind AS 116 'Leases’
(a) The Company has applied the following practical expedients oninitial application of Ind AS 116: -

()  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a
similarend date.

(ii) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of
lease term and small value leases on the date of initial application.

(iii) Included the initial direct costs, if any, from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

(iv) Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
(b) The Company hasrecognized lease liabilities and equivalent amount of right-of-use assets amounting to
%1,307.67 Lakhs (PYX 2,508.61 Lakhs) in FY 2024-25.

(c) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognized under Ind AS 116 is 7.73%. (PY
7.93%) Company as Lessee

(I) The following are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognized and the movements during the period:

TUSCO LIMITED
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(in Lakh)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Opening Balance 11,972.29 9,381.03
- Additions in lease liabilities 1,307.67 2,508.61
- Interest cost during the year 1,038.14 931.96
- Payment of lease liabilities 1,278.62 849.31
Closing Balance 13,039.48 11,972.29
Current 1,005.48 1,177.48
Non-Current 12,034.00 10,794.81
Maturity Analysis of the lease liabilities:- (in Lakh)
Contractual undiscounted cash flows As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
3 months or less 251.37 294.37
3-12 Months 754.10 883.11
1-2 Years 1,005.47 1,177.48
2-5 Years 3,016.41 3,709.05
More than 5 Years 31,116.03 21,649.65
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2025 36,143.88 27,713.65
(iii) The following are the amounts recognized in EDC:- (%in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets 596.82 492.71
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1,038.14 931.96
(iv) The following are the amounts of cash flow against leases: (Xin Lakh)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Cash Outflow against leases 1,278.63 849.31
Advance against Lease Agreements 3,178.04 358.93

12.

a) The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and other parties.

There are no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts and borrowings from banks & financial institutions. So

far as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned , the balance confirmation letters with the negative
assertion as referred in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) “External Confirmation”, were sent to the parties.
Some of such balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustment, if any will be accounted for on

confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material impact.

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of assets, other than property, plant & equipment on realisation
inthe ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the Balance Sheet.

13. Paymentto Auditors (including GST) (%in Lakh
I Statutory Audit Fees (i/c GST) 2024-25 2023-24
Il. For Taxation matter (Tax Audit) 2.36 2.36
Il. For Company Law matter
IV. For Management services
V. For other Services(Certification) 0.59 0.59
VI. For Reimbursement of expenditure

*Subject to approval in Annual General Meeting.
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14. a)Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents between Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet is as under:

(Rin Lakh)
Particulars Note No 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Cash And Cash Equivalents 5 5.54 1.16
Add: Bank Balances under Lien 0.00 0.00
Less: Over Draft Balance 0.00 0.00
Cash & Cash Equivalent as per Cash Flow Statement 5.54 1.16

b) Schedule Il of the Companies Act,2013 specifically requires bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity to be
disclosed as a part of 'other financial assets' under financial, non-current assets. The Guidance Notes (GN) mentions that
the maturity should be construed as remaining maturity of more than 12 months. (Refer :Note:-6)

¢) In March 2017 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments)
Rules 2017 notifying amendments to Ind AS 7 'Statement of cash flows'. These amendments are in accordance with the
recentamendments made by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to IAS 7 'Statement of cash flows.

The amendments are applicable from 01 April 2017 and they introduce additional disclosures that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the
balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities to meet the disclosure requirement.

Cash flow from Financing Activities (2024-25) | Opening | Current Year| Closing Change | Remarks

Share Capital Issued Subscribed & Paid-up | 4,000.00 833.00 | 4,833.00 833.00 | X Equity Contribution of
(Including pending allotment) 703.00 Lakhs from THDCIL

& X130.00 Lakhs from
UPNEDA received during
the financial year
(including pending

allotment)
Lease obligations 11,972.29| 1,067.19 |13,039.48 | (1,278.62)| Payment made to farmer
towards Lease
Borrowings 2,941.38 | 3,513.26 | 6,454.64 | 3,513.26 | X 3000.00 Lakhs has been

received from RECL for

Jhansi Loan and X 513.26
Lakhs is the accumulated
interest capitalized on loan

Payment of Interest &
= (1,038.14) - (1,038.14) ﬁn\::mce charges

Interest and Finance
Charges

Net Cash flow from financing 2,029.50

15. Disclosures under the provision of IND AS 19

a) Since the employees are on secondment basis from its parent company — THDCIL, the employee benefit includes
provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical facilities, compensated absence and other terminal benefits
are in terms of the arrangement with the parent company. The company is to make a fixed contribution to the above
schemes through its parent company which maintain these funds through respective trusts. Accordingly, these employee
benefits are treated as defined contribution scheme. (Refer note no.17).

TUSCO Limited, being the subsidary of THDCIL as Public Limited Company has recruited 2 permanent employees on
the payroll of TUSCO Limited as Data entry Operator (DEO) during the financial year 2024-25The Company in its 13" Board
Meeting, the Board of Directors (BOD) has passed and approved that TUSCO Limited shall be governed by the
Policies/guidelines of THDCIL and all the HR policies & guidelines,Service Rules and Service Conditions, Recruitment
Policies, Standing Orders, Delegation /Sub delegation of Powers, Financial Rules, Policies and Procedures for procurement of
Goods and Services and works & Services, Works Manual etc. of THDCIL shall be applicable on TUSCO Limited as well.

b) Defined contribution Plan: -
Actuarial valuation of the company has been prepared with the objective of identifying the financial status and required

disclosure figures of actuarial liability for Gratuity liability, Earned Leave, Half Pay leave, Farewell Gift, Others-Baggage
Allowance/ Long Service Award/FBS liability of the employees, in accordance with IND AS 19.
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c) Defined benefit plans:

(i) Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit Gratuity Plan, which is regulated as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972.The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(ii) Leave encashment: The Company has a defined benefit leave encashment plan for its Employees. Under this plan they are
entitled to encashment of earned leaves and medical leaves subject to limits and other conditions specified for the same.
The liability towards leave encashment is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Table - 1: Key Actuarial assumption & Risk exposures for Actuarial Valuation as at:

Particular 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Mortality Table IALM (2012 - 14) IALM (2012 - 14)
Discount Rate 6.81 7.10
Future Salary Increase 6.50 6.50

Description of Risk Exposures: Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamicin nature and vary over time. As
such company is exposed to various risks as follow —

A)  Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in
future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the
discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

C)  DiscountRate: Reductionin discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact
the liabilities.

E)  Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at
subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liability.

Table-2: Change in Present Value of Obligations (PVO) RinLakhs

Particular Gratuity Earned Leave (EL) Sick Leave (HPL) Farewell Gift Others-Baggage
Allowance/ Long
Service Award/FBS

PVO at the 0.125 0.446 0.170 0 0.007

beginning

of the year

Interest 0.008 0.031 0.012 0 0.00

cost

Past service 0 0 0 0 0.00

cost

Cu rrgnt 0.323 0.291 0.127 0.008 0.005

service cost

Benefit paid 0 0 0 0 0.00

Actuarial 0.009 (0.059) (0.125) 0.003 (0.005)

(Gain)/loss

PVO at the 0.467 0.711 0.184 0.012 0.007

end of the

year

Table — 3: Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

Particular Gratuity Earned Leave (EL) Sick Leave (HPL) Farewell Gift Others-Baggage
Allowance/ Long
Service Award/FBS

PVO at the 0.467 0.711 0.184 0.012 0.007

beginning

of the year

Fair Value of Plan 0 0 0 0 0

Assets at the end

of year

(74) TUSCO LIMITED
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Funded
Laib./Prov

0

0

0

Unfunded
Laib./Prov

(0.467)

(0.711)

(0.184)

(0.012)

(0.007)

Unrecognised
actuarial
gain/loss

0

0

(0.003)

Net Assets/
(liability)
recognized
in the Bala-
nce Sheet

(0.467)

(0.711)

(0.184)

(0.012)

(0.007)

Table — 4: Amount recognized in Statemen

t of Profit & Loss, OCI & EDC .

Particular

Gratuity

Earned Leave
(EL)

Sick Leave
(HPL)

Farewell Gift

Others-
Baggage
Allowance/
Long Service
Award/FBS

Current Service
Cost

0.323

0.291

0.127

0.008

0.005

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

0.008

0.031

0.012

Net Actuarial
(gain)/loss
recognized for
the year in OCI

(0.059)

(0.125)

Expense
recognized
Statement in
Profit & Loss/
EDC for the year.

0.332

0.264

0.014

0.008

0.005

Table — 5: Sensitivity analysis

Impact
due to

Gratuity

Earned Leave (EL)

Sick Leave (HPL)

Farewell Gift

Others

31.03.
2025

31.03.
2024

31.03.
2025

31.03.
2024

31.03.
2025

31.03.
2024

31.03.
2025

31.03.
2024

31.03.
2025

31.03.
2024

Discount rate

I'ncr | (0.050)
ase of

0.50%

(0.013)

(0.071) | (0.045)

(0.019) | (0.017)

(0.001) | -

(0.00) | (0.00)

Decre
ase of
0.50%

0.057

0.015

0.081 0.051

0.21 0.019

0.001 =

0.00 0.00

Salary rate

Incr
ase of
0.50%

0.057

0.015

0.081 0.051

0.21 0.019

0.001 -

0.00 0.00

Decre
ase of
0.50%

(0.050)

(0.013)

(0.071) (0.045)

(0.19) | (0.017)

(0.001) e

(0.00) | (0.00)
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Gratuity 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 0.467 0.12
Actuarial (Gain)/loss 0.009 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized through Statement of OCI 0 0
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss/EDC for the year 0.332 0.12
Earned Leave (EL) 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 0.711 0.18
Actuarial (Gain)/loss (0.059) 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized through Statement of OCI (0.059) 0
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss/EDC for the year 0.264 0.18
Sick Leave (HPL) 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 0.184 0.00
Actuarial (Gain)/loss (0.125) 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized through Statement of OCI (0.125) 0
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss/EDC for the year 0.014 0.00
Others-Baggage Allowance/Long Service Award/FBS 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 0.007 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss (0.005) 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized through Statement of OCI for the year 0 0
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss/EDC for the year 0.005 0
Farewell Gift 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 0.012 0.07
Actuarial (Gain)/loss 0.003 0
Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized through Statement of OCI 0 0
Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss/EDC for the year 0.008 0.07

The Company has Input Tax Credit under the provision of Goods & Service Tax. The said input tax credit (ITC) has been
claimed over the GST Portal which will be utilised in future subject to the applicable provisions of GST and the same has not

been recognised as ITC available for utilisation in the books of accounts.

Ratio Analysis:-

SI. No. |Particulars| Numerator | Denominator Year ended % Variance Reason for Variance
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
(Audited) (Audited)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
a isi .
Currfant Current ?un”gr’\t 235 0.89 164.04 % As the. company is in con
Ratio Assets Liabilities struction phase & opera-
tion is yet to be started .
b Debt | Total debt Networth 1.41 0.78 80.77% |As the company has
Equity availed loan of X3000.00
Ratio Lakhs & X 513.26 Lakhs
is the accumulated
interest capitalized on loan
M/S RECL during the
financial year 2024-25.
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SI. No. |Particulars| Numerator | Denominator Year ended % Variance | Reason for Variance
31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
(Audited) (Audited)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
C Debt (Net Profit | (Interest on -0.11 -0.70 84.29% |As the company has
Service | After Taxes + debt + availed loan of 3000.00
Coverage | Interest on Principal Lakhs and X 513.26
Ratio | debt+ Dep- | repayments Lakhs is the accumulated)
reciation & of interest capitalized on
Amortisation| long term loan M/S RECL during
Exp + Loss on debt) the financial year
sale of Fixed 2024-25.
Assets)
d Return Net Average -0.01% -0.02% 50% As the company is in
on profit Stakeholder's construction phase and
Equity after Equity operation is yet to be
Ratio taxes started.
€ Inventory | Revenue Average 0.00 0.00 0.00% NA
turnover from Inventory
ratio |Operations
f Debtors | Revenue Average 0.00 0.00 0.00% NA
turnover from trade
ratio |Operations | receivables
(Net Credit
Sales)
g Trade Net Average 0.00 0.00 0.00% NA
_I;ayables Credit Trade
urnover
Ratio Purchases Payables
h Net Revenue Working 0.00 0.00 0.00% NA
TCapltaI from Capital
urnover .
pa Operations
i Net Profit| Net profit Net Sales 0% 0% 0.00% NA
Margin | after taxes
j Return Earning Capital 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% NA
on before Employed
Capital Interest
Employed| & Taxes
k Return Income Investment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% NA
on Inves- rom
tment |Investment

18. PY figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make figures comparable with the figures
of current year.

19. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors as on 18.05.2025.
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Sd/-
(R K Vishnoi)
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Date: 18.05.2025
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Date: 19.05.2025
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For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Manoj Sardana) (C.P. Raturi)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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As Per Our Report of Even Date Attached
For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
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Sdy/-
(CA J. Mukherjee)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To, the Members of TUSCO Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
TUSCO Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of
Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income),
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended onthat date.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is invited to the following note of the Ind AS
financial statements:

Note-20(4)- During the bidding process, M/s Hinduja
Renewables Energy Pvt. Ltd., was selected as the Solar Project
Developer (SPD) through an open tender issued on
21.08.2024, for the development of a 600 MW Solar Power
Park at Tehsil Garautha, Jhansi, Uttar Pradesh, on a Build-Own-
Operate (BOO) basis. The Letter of Award (LOA) was issued to
M/s Hinduja Renewables Energy Pvt. Ltd. on 06.01.2025.

Pursuant to the terms of the LOA, M/s Hinduja Renewables
Energy Pvt. Ltd. was obligated to execute the Contract
Agreement, Implementation Service Agreement and Land
Right-to-Use Agreement with TUSCO Ltd. within thirty (30)
days from the date of issuance of the LOA. These agreements
were to be completed and signed by an authorized
representative of the company.

As of the date of this report, the aforementioned agreements
have not been executed, and no forfeiture of the security

deposit has been observed or recorded.
Our opinionis not modified in respect of these matters.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of

TUSCO LIMITED
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adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
duetofraudorerror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing
the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
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expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue asagoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issue by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(5) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure-B” a statement based on the directions
issued and matters specified by the Comptroller and

TUSCO LIMITED



‘5 ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

Auditor General of India.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

TUSCO LIMITED

We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Since, the company is a Government Company,
section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
obtaining written representations from the directors
of the Company, is not applicable to the company in
terms of notification no. GSR-463(E) dated 5" June
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Reportin “Annexure C”.

Since, the company is a Government Company,
section 197(16) of the Companies Act, 2013
regarding managerial remuneration, is not applicable
to the company in terms of notification no. GSR-
463(E) dated 5" June 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

As per information and explanation provided to us,
the Company has no pending litigations for which
impact is required to be specified on its financial
positioninits Ind AS financial statements.
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivatives contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses, if any.

There is no amount which is, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or any kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Inter-
mediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which bare material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

Based on our examination, which included test
checks, the Company has used accounting software
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

4. The company has not declared or paid any dividend
during the Financial Year.

For Joy Mukherjee & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(CA J. Mukherjee)
Partner

Membership No. 074602
UDIN:25074602BMICC03531

Date: 19.05.2025
Place: Lucknow

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on
Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even
date to the financial statements of the company for the year
ended March 31, 2025:

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of
reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the
information and explanations given to us and the books of
account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,

We reportthat:

1. (@) The Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, further the company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment including the
Right to Use Assets have been physically verified by

3.

4.

the management in a phased manner, which in our
opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed in such verification.

(c) Noimmovable property is held in the name of the
company, in respect ofimmovable properties taken
on lease and disclosed as right to use assets in the
financial statements.

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets)
andintangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no proceedings have
been initiated against the Company for holding
Benami property under the “Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made there
under.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and
information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not any inventory
during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 Crore, in aggregate, at
any points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions of the basis of security of
current assets and hence reporting under clause
3(ii)(b) of the orderis not applicable.

The company has not made investments in, neither
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) ato f
of the Orderis not applicable.

The company has not given loan or made Investment or
given guarantee and security for the persons specified
under provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

TUSCO LIMITED
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The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence reporting under
clause 3(v) of the Orderis not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts have been made and maintained.

(@) According to information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, and records, the Company has
been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, and, Cess and any
other material statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months
fromthe date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given
to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
outstanding on account of any dispute.

. There were no transactions relating to previously

unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income taxAct, 1961 (43 0f 1961).

(a) The company has not taken any loans or other
borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Orderis not applicable.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial intuitions or government or
any governmentauthority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the
year and there are no outstanding term loans at the
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)© of the Orderis not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
tous, and the procedures performed by us,and onan
overall examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds
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raised on short term basis have been used for long
term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet obligation
of its Associate. The Company does not have any
subsidiaries or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on
the plea of securities held in its Associate. The
Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint
ventures.

(a) In my opinion and according to information and
explanation given by the management, the Company
did not raise money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under the clause
3(x)(a) of the Orderis notapplicable.

The Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially, or optionally)
during the year and accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Orderis notapplicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the period covered under audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Act, has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time) with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the
date of thisreport.

(c) According to the information and explanation given
to us and based on our examination of the books of
account of the company, no whistle blower
complaints have been received during the year by
the company. Accordingly reporting under paragraph
xi(c) of the orderis not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
provision of clause 3(xii) (a, b & c) of the Order is not
applicable.

In my opinion, all transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed
in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. Further, in my opinion, the
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company is not required to constitute audit committee
undersection 177 of the Act.

. According to the information and explanation given to

us, the Company is not required to have an internal
audit system under Section 138 of the Act and
however for the purpose of better management and
good governance, Management has appointed M/s
Jitendra Agrawal & Associates for Internal Audit for the
financial year 2024-25, and consequently, Internal Audit
has been conducted.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him and hence
reporting under clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is
notapplicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us
and based on our examination of the books and records
of the Company:

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking
financial or housing finance activities during the
year;

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company
(hereinafter referred to as “CIC”) as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Directions), 2016, as
amended from time to time, issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence, reporting under paragraph
3(xvi)(c) of the Orderis not applicable; and

(d) In our opinion and based on the representation
received from the management, there is no core
investment company within the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Orderis not applicable.

Based on the examination of the books of accounts,
we report that the Company has incurred cash losses of
Rs. 57.50 Lacs and Rs. 73.91 in the current financial year
covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory
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auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3 (xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

19. According to the information and explanations given to

us and based on the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying
standalone financial statements, my knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on
my examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. I, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. | further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither given any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
oneyear from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

20. According to the information and explanation provided

to me, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as
specified under Section 135(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

21. The reporting under clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not

applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment
has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Joy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006792C

Sd/-

(CA J. Mukherjee)
Partner

Membership No. 074602

Date: 19.05.2025

TUSCO LIMITED
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred toin paragraph 2, under 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's
Report of even date]

According to the information and explanations given to us
we report as under:

1.  Whetherthe company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

Company has adequate system to process all
accounting transactions through IT System. The
company prepares the Financial Statements on the
software of FMS (Financial Management System)
provided by the holding THDC Ltd.

2. Whetherthereis any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a Government
company, then this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lender company).

Based upon audit we did not come across any cases of
waiver / written off of debts/loans/ interest, etc. during
theyear underaudit.

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for specific schemes from Central/State
Government or its agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation.

According to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our audit, the Company has received Rs. 10,773.37
Lakhs as Grant from MNRE during the financial year towards
the land acquisition , civil infra expenditure and internal
power evacuation , for 600 MW Lalitpur Solar Power
Park,600 MW Jhansi Solar Power Park & 800 MW Chitrakoot
Solar Power Park, under the scheme for Development of
Solar Parks and Ultra Mega Solar power projects as Central
Financial Assistance (CFA), and further Rs. 833.00 Lakhs in
form of Equity capital from its promoters during the financial
year, which are properly accounted for and is being utilised
forthe project.

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF TUSCO LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of TUSCO Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
my/our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse

TUSCO LIMITED
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audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
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not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForJoy Mukherjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 006792C

Sd/-

(CA J. Mukherjee)
Partner

Membership No. 074602

Date: 19.05.2025
Place: Lucknow

TUSCO LIMITED
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF TUSCO LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of TUSCO LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 of the Act based onindependent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. Thisis stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 19 May 2025.
I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of TUSCO LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2025 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records.
Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section
143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report.
A. Comments on Financial position
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities-X3,627.09 lakh
(a) TradePayables(Note No.12)-%1,809.13lakh
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (Note No. 12) -
X1,794.15lakh
The above includes an amount of X213.20 lakh payable to employees, as per their employment terms,
which as per Guidance Note on Division Il-Ind AS Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, should have
beenincludedin Provisions under Current Liabilities.
This resulted in overstatement of Current Financial Liabilities by 213.20 lakh and understatement of
Provisions by the same amount.
(b) Others(Note No.12)-%812.49 lakh
The above includes an amount of X114.08 lakh being deposits and retention money obtained from
contractors which were payable after twelve months, hence as per Guidance Note on Division Il-Ind AS
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, should have been recognized as Non-Current Financial
Liabilities.
This resulted in overstatement of Current Financial Liabilities by *114.08 lakh and understatement of
Non-Current Financial Liabilities by the same amount.
B. Comments on Disclosure
Board of Directors of the Company approved (19 March 2025) an increase in paid up share capital of the
Company upto %50 crore. THDC India Limited remitted (21 March 2025) %333 lakh towards share
application money while Uttar Pradesh New and Renewable Energy Development Agency (UPNEDA)
remitted X117 lakh, on 4 April 2025, towards its share application money.

TUSCO LIMITED
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However, the share application money received from THDC India Limited has not been reflected in Statement of Change in
Equity. Also, the share application money received from UPNEDA has not been disclosed in Notes to Financial statements, in
non-compliance to Ind AS 10, inspite of it being an event after the reporting date but before the Financial Statements were
approved by the Board of Directors.
Thus, the Statement of Change in Equity and Notes to Financial Statements are deficient to that extent.
C. Commentson Auditor's Report
(a) InPara6 of Annexure Ato Independent Auditor's Report the Statutory Auditor has reported that they are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained when in fact as per Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (Order) they are required to give opinion on whether the maintenance of the cost record has been specified by
Central Government for the Company and whether such accounts and records have been so made and maintained.
The Auditor's Report is deficient to the extent stated above.
In Para 9(a) of Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report the Statutory Auditor has reported that the Company has not
taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence, reporting under the Order is not applicable. In Para 9(c) they
have further stated that the Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at
the beginning of the year, hence, reporting under the Order is not applicable. However, the Company has signed a loan
agreement for X 140.47 crore in May 2023 with M/s REC Limited against which it has already availed loan of X 59 crore during
2023-2025
The Auditor's Report is deficient to the extent stated above.

(b

-

Forand on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-

Tanuja Mittal

Director General of Audit (Energy)
Place: New Delhi

TUSCO LIMITED D
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Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143 (6) (b)
of The Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statement of TUSCO Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2025 and Management Replies thereon

C&AG Comment Management Reply
A. Comments on Financial position
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities-X3,627.09 lakh
(a) Trade Payables (Note No. 12) - X1,809.13

lakh

Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises (Note No. 12)-X1,794.15 lakh

The above includes an amount of X213.20
lakh payable to employees, as per their
employment terms, which as per Guidance
Note on Division lI-Ind AS Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, should have been
included in Provisions under Current
Liabilities.

This resulted in overstatement of Current
Financial Liabilities by %213.20 lakh and
understatement of Provisions by the same
amount.

Itis submitted that out of the total amount of X213.20 lakh, a|
sum of X210.08 lakh is payable to the Holding Company, i.e.,
M/s THDC India Limited, towards miscellaneous expenditure
incurred at the time of the inception of the Company.
Accordingly, this amount has been classified under Trade
Payables. The remaining X3.12 lakh pertains to liabilities
payable to employees under various heads.

However, the audit observation in this regard has been duly
noted. We assure that the classification of these amounts
will be reviewed in future and, if necessary, revised|
appropriately in accordance with the relevant provisions of
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

TUSCO LIMITED
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(b)

Others (Note No. 12)-X812.49 lakh

The above includes an amount of X114.08
lakh being deposits and retention money
obtained from contractors which were
payable after twelve months, hence as per
Guidance Note on Division lI-Ind AS Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013, should have
been recognized as Non Current Financial
Liabilities.

This resulted in overstatement of Current
Financial Liabilities by X114.08 lakh and
understatement of Non Current Financial
Liabilities by the same amount.

Comments on Disclosure

Board of Directors of the Company approved
(19 March 2025) an increase in paid up share
capital of the Company upto X50 crore. THDC
India Limited remitted (21 March 2025) X333
lakh towards share application money while
Uttar Pradesh New and Renewable Energy
Development Agency (UPNEDA) remitted
X117 lakh, on 4 April 2025, towards its share
application money.

However, the share application money
received from THDC India Limited has not
been reflected in Statement of Change in
Equity. Also, the share application money
received from UPNEDA has not been
disclosed in Notes to Financial statements, in
non-compliance to Ind AS 10, inspite of it
being an event after the reporting date but
before the Financial Statements were
approved by the Board of Directors.

Thus, the Statement of Change in Equity and
Notes to Financial Statements are deficient
to that extent.

Based on the expectation for the release of deposits and
retention money, the same was classified under current
financial liabilities. It is also submitted that this classification
had noimpact onthe total liabilities of the Company.

However, the audit observation regarding this classification
has been duly noted. Going forward, the Company assures
that such items will be reviewed in detail, and appropriate
classification between current and non-current financial
liabilities will be made in accordance with the requirements
of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.

It is submitted that the equity contribution is to be made in
the shareholding ratio of 74:26. Accordingly, subsequent to
the approval for increase in paid-up share capital by X450
lakh, an amount of X333 lakh was received from one of the
promoters, i.e., THDC India Limited, on 21.03.2025, and has
been appropriately shown under Note No. 10— Other Equity
inthe financial statements.

Further, the remaining contribution of X117 lakh from the
other promoter, i.e., UPNEDA, was received on 04.04.2025,
i.e., after the balance sheet date of 31.03.2025. Since the
amount was received subsequent to the reporting date, it
was not recognized in the accounts for the year ended
31.03.2025.

However, the Audit observation that such subsequent
events should be disclosed in the Notes to Accounts has
been duly noted. Necessary care shall be taken in future to
ensure proper disclosure in the Statement of Changes in
Equity as well as in the Notes to Accounts, in line with
applicable accounting standards.

TUSCO LIMITED
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(a)

(b)

Comments on Auditor's Report

In Para 6 of Annexure A to Independent
Auditor's Report the Statutory Auditor has
reported that they are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have
been made and maintained when in fact as
per Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 (Order) they are required to give
opinion on whether the maintenance of the
cost record has been specified by Central
Government for the Company and whether
such accounts and records have been so
made and maintained.

The Auditor's Report is deficient to the
extent stated above.

In Para 9(a) of Annexure A to Independent
Auditor's Report the Statutory Auditor has
reported that the Company has not taken
any loans or other borrowings from any
lender. Hence, reporting under the Order is
not applicable. In Para 9(c) they have further
stated that the Company has not taken any
term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term loans at the beginning of
the year, hence, reporting under the Order is
not applicable. However, the Company has
signed a loan agreement for X140.47 crore in
May 2023 with M/s REC Limited against
which it has already availed loan of 59 crore
during 2023-2025.

The Auditor's Report is deficient to the
extent stated above.

No comments, as it pertains to Statutory Auditors' Report.

No comments, as it pertains to Statutory Auditors' Report.

TUSCO LIMITED
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